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Strategic report

Principal activity and review of the business
The principal activities of the group, and company, during the year have been the manufacture,
importation and distribution of food and drink products to the grocery trade.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006..

The group turnover for the year ended 31 March 2021 was £1,558,575,000 (2020: £1,533,093,000)
increase was mainly due to the effect of COVID-19 on demand during the financial year.

The group profit for the year ended 31 March 2021, after taxation and minority interests, amounted to
£34,815,000 (2020: £19,193,000). Increased with the effect of Covid-19, a positive sales mix and a non-
recurring benefit relating to the sale of fixed assets.

The group’ profit before tax, restructuring costs and impairment charges, for the year ended 31 March
2021, amounted to £46,235,000 (2020: £30,449,000). Calculations of this measure can be found on page
4,

Yearly strategic reviews of operational performance of the groupl manufacturing sites have been
undertaken. The review has resulted in restructuring costs of £960,000 (2020: £3,835,000) being
recognised in the year. Further details of this review is included in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

An analysis of the group turnover is included in the key performance indicators which are included in the
strategic report on page 4.

The consolidated statement of financial position remains consistent in composition compared to the prior.
The net assets for the group as at 31 March 2021 were £336,115,000 (2020: £357,542,000). Net current
liabilities at 31 March 2021 increased to £98,628,000 (2020: £59,097,000) and net debt decreased to
£519,957,000 (2020: £529,609,000). The increase in net current liabilities is a result of lower trade
receivables £168,608,000 (2020: £195,476,000) with last year being inflated by COVID-19 stockpiling
and a greater element of borrowings falling due in less than one year £379,869,000 (2020: £360,818,000).
The decrease in net debt is due to scheduled debt repayments and positive cash generation by the business
during the year. The movement in the pension surplus £41,085,000 (2020: £70,947,000) relates to
actuarial losses when revaluing the retirement obligation.

The group’s net cash flows from operating activities, for the year ended 31 March 2021, amounted to
£81,553,000 cash inflow (2020: £10,073,000 outflow). Increase mainly due to increased profitability in
the year and working capital benefits.

The average headcount for the group for the year ended 31 March 2021 was 6,779 (2020: 6,875).

Future developments
The directors aim to maintain the management policies which have resulted in the group’s growth in
recent years and to invest in projects that will drive improved profitability.

The directors have fully evaluated the effect of the Covid-19 pandemic on the business; revised forecasts
have been prepared and presented to the board with the initial impact being positive on the whole.

Although there are some switches in product sales mixes, demand for Princes products-on the whole has
significantly increased as a result of the lockdown measures put in place by government. These lockdown
measures have meant consumers have bought more and also consumed more at home. There has been a
significant drop in some product lines, particularly foodservice and catering products due to national
lockdowns but with lockdowns now beginning to ease across Europe these are expected to return.

The health and safety of Princes colleagues remains our top priority with ongoing measures being taken
across the group to ensure we are able to continue to meet the high demand for our essential products
while minimising the personal risk to our key workers.
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Strategic report (continued)

Future developments (continued)

Princes have had no delays in any ongoing capital or restructuring projects as a result of the pandemic as
they have been classified as essential work due to being related to the supply of food and drink. Princes
.have however taken steps with project partners to ensure their safety and that they were comfortable with
returning to work on the projects. There are no issues with the financing required for ongoing projects as
discussed in the going concern section below.

A key risk of Covid-19 for Princes is ensuring a constant supply of raw materials during global lockdowns
in order to continue to meet the high demand for our essential products. Princes have mitigated this risk by
performing full reviews of supply chains to ensure suppliers are able to meet our production demands.
There have been no significant supply chain issues noted due to the industry being an essential service.

Going concern

Having made reasonable enquiries the Directors are of the opinion that the group has sufficient resources
to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. The Directors have considered the impact
of COVID-19 on the group’s projections and found that despite the multiple challenges and associated
costs, it has overall had a positive effect on both cash flow and profit forecasts due to Princes providing
essential products. The group remained profitable in the year with profit from continuing operations of
£36,747,000, have a net asset position of £336,115,000 and generated net cash flows of £9,746,000
despite the large scale capital projects taking place in the year. This profitability and cash generation from
day to day operations is expected to continue into the future however as a resuit of the net current liability
position (£96,309,000) Mitsubishi Corporation have issued a letter of support for the group. Borrowings
from a subsidiary of Princes ultimate parent, Mitsubishi Corporation which makes up 84% of the total
group’s borrowings have been guaranteed and Mitsubishi Corporation have remained committed to
providing the extra funding needed in order to complete the large capital projects that are underway. The
Directors have assessed the ability of Mitsubishi Corporation to support the group and have concluded
they have the ability to do so. Thus they continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in
preparing the financial statements. Further details are disclosed within note 1.

Principal risks and uncertainties

COVID-19 impact

The group has overall seen a positive impact on both profit and cash flows due to the COVID-19
pandemic. Although there have been some additional operational costs and drops in some product lines,
particularly foodservice and catering products due to national lockdowns this has been outweighed by
significant increases in sales of other lines with consumers buying more and consuming more meals at
home.

Treasury policies
The objective of the treasury team is to manage the group’s financial risk.

The group finances its activities with a combination of bank borrowings, finance leases, loans from group
undertakings and cash. Other financial assets and liabilities, such as trade debtors and trade creditors,
arise directly from the group’s operating activities. The group also enters into derivative transactions,
principally forward currency contracts to manage the currency risks arising from the group’s operations.
The group does not speculatively trade in financial instruments.

Foreign exchange

The group has invested in operations outside of the United Kingdom and also buys and sells goods and
services denominated in currencies other than sterling. As a result the value of the group’s non-sterling
revenues, purchases, financial assets and liabilities and cash flows can be affected by movements in
exchange rates in general and in the US Dollar and Euro rates in particular. The group’s transactional
-currency exposure arises from sales or purchases in currencies other than its functional currency. The
group treasury policy requires its operating units to use forward currency contracts to minimise the
currency exposures. Forward currency contracts must be in the same currency as the hedged item.
Hedging arrangements are discussed further in note 36.
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Strategic report (continued)

Key performance indicators
The group uses several measures as indicators of the performance of the group and each of its divisions as

follows:

2021 2020
Revenue (£'000) 1,558,575 1,533,093
Costofsales (£'000) 1,278,349 1,260,740
Costofsalesasapercentageofrevenue (%) 82.0 82.2
Pre-tax pro fit 45,275 _ 30,411
Addback:
Restructuringcosts (Note 4) 960 3,835
Impairment charges (Note 4) - . (3,797)
Pretax profit, excluding restructuring costs and
impairment charges (£'000) 46,235 30,449
Top 10 customerconcentration (%) 61.5 60.7
Numberof employees
Employees (average) 6,779 6,875
Temporary sub-contracted agency employees (average) 804 766
Totalfulltimeemployees (average) 7,583 7,641
Revenuegenerated per fu]ltimeemployeé(aver'ége)(.£'000) 206 201

Financial performance
The group’s revenue has increased from £1,533,093,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020 to
£1,558,575,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 mainly due to the effect of COVID-19 on demand
during the financial year.

Costs of sales have increased in line with revenue from £1,260,740,000 for the year ended 31 March 2020
to £1,278,349,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021. Cost of sales as a percentage of revenue has
improved from 82.2% for the year ended 31 March 2020 to 82.0% for the year ended 31 March 2021
mainly due to the sale of Princes bottled water business during the year which was low margin.

The pre-tax profit, excluding restructuring costs and impairment charges has increased in the current year
from £30,449,000 to £46,235,000. This increase is a result of increased gross profit compared to prior year
and savings from restructuring projects. This is an indicator of the normalised profit of the group.

Top 10 customer concentration
The group’s largest 10 customers have remained broadly in line with the prior year, and accounted for .
61.5% of group revenue for the year ended 31 March 2021, compared to 60.7% for the year ended 31
March 2020.

Number of employees

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the group had an average headcount of 7,583 across its various sites,
generating revenue per employee of £206,000. This shows an increase from £201,000 for the year ended
31 March 2020 which had an average headcount of 7,641. Increase in revenue per employee is caused by
increased revenue compared to the prior year with headcount decreasing.
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Strategic report (continued)

Section 172 Statement

In accordance with s172 of the Companies Act 2006, included in this section of the strategic report are
representations of how the Directors have had regard to the matters set out in section 172(1) (a) to (f) of
the Companies Act 2006 when performing their duties.

The Directors are fully aware of their responsibilities to promote the success of the company in
accordance of s172 and have acted in accordance with these responsibilities during the year.

Employees

The Directors consider the interests of the company’s employees to be essential as part of our vision to
make Princes Limited an ‘Employer of Choice’. :

The Directors maintain the provision of information to and consultation with employees by means of
regular and ad hoc meetings of management and employees. The group places considerable value on the
involvement of its employées and has continued to keep them informed on matters affecting them as
employees and on the various factors affecting the performance of the group.

As part of Princes Limited’s drive to become an ‘Employer of Choice’ various measures have been
introduced during the year to create a performance culture, allow employees to reach their full potential
and reward people who champion change, improvement and great service.

Princes have evolved our People Excellence strategy and developed 6 pillars that bring to life the Our
Princes — Our People Philosophy. Together they embed a culture of mutual respect and responsibility. We
want everyone to feel they belong to something special at Princes and share a commitment to long-term
excellence in everything we do. i

A key example of this is the group wide ‘Pride in Princes” programme. This is an employee incentive
scheme where quarterly awards are issued to employees that have been nominated by their colleagues for
going the extra mile in the workplace. Winners receive group wide recognition and cash prizes.

During the year Princes have also rolled out the “Feel Good Hub” offering exclusive benefits and
discounts to Princes employees.

The Environment & Corporate Social Responsibility

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is fundamental to our business, never seen as a project or
undertaken for the sake of compliance. Our efforts are focussed on three pillars of CSR: Climate Change
& The Environment, Fair Partner & Good Employer & Health & Wellbeing.

Cross functional work streams for each pillar monitor our progress and set new targets while we have a
number of specific working groups encompassing seafood sustainability, human rights, packaging, energy
and colleague health and safety. :

Princes see reducing the environmental impact of the packaging used in our products as a key goal which
is fundamental to our vision. During the year various key decisions have been made which have helped us
achieve goals in the reduction of non-recyclable packaging & increasing the proportion of recycled
materials used in our packaging. See the business relationships section below for a key example of this.

During the year Princes announced our business partner status with the Bright Future scheme. The scheme
offers paid work placements and jobs in our food business to those who have been rescued from modern
slavery in the UK. A similar scheme was introduced in our Italian PIA business in 2019.

Princes are also fully committed to seafood sustainability; during the year Princes announced that we will
reduce our use of Indian Ocean Yellowfin tuna by 50% by 2022 due to serious concerns at stock levels
and inaction from the governing body. In addition Princes have worked with a global blockchain expert to
create a transparency platform for tuna on sale in the Netherlands and tomatoes in the UK. This allows
shoppers to scan a QR code on a can and trace it back to where it was caught enabling shoppers to make a
more conscious, informed decision and bringing integrity to the food system.

4
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Section 172 Statement (Continued)

Business relationships

The Directors hold in high regard the need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers,
customers and others.

At Princes, we regularly engage with colleagues, suppliers, customers, neighbours, Non-Governmental
Organisations, Policy makers and many others to build relationships, learn from each other, expand our
scope and aim for the greater good. This is done through a range of communication methods and formal
agreements such as the formation of strategic partnerships.

The reduction of single use non-recyclable plastic is a key desire for both our immediate customers and
the end consumers of our products as people and companies alike are starting to realise the damage that
these cause to the environment. This has led to changes in how consumers shop as well as retailers own
goals being set to reduce single use plastics in the products they sell. Taking the desires of our customers
in mind as well as packaging improvements being key area of our own CSR, during the year we made the
decision to replace the plastic packaging used on our multipack Princes branded tuna with a recyclable
cardboard sleeve. We have also started trials for potential recyclable alternatives to plastic pouches and
other non recyclable materials to ensure we meet our goal of all consumer packaging being widely
recyclable, reusable or compostable by 2025. We are also fully engaged via representative trade bodies on
Deposit Return Schemes and are supportive of the introduction of a well designed DRS to reduce litter
and increase collection and domestic recycling.

The Impact of long term decisions

The Directors consider the long term consequences of all decisions made to ensure the continuing
sustainability of the company and industry. This is depicted by the approval of large capital expenditure in
manufacturing sites and commitment to corporate social responsibility ambitions.

In addition, this year we’ve invested in our state-of-the art Innovation Centre, to enhance, drive and fast
track our innovation work. We’re reimagining our approach with the launch of a strategic initiative
‘Innov8 by Princes’, partnering with KICR Innovation ltd, a joint venture between London based award-
winning Food Innovation Solutions Itd and MMR, a global Market Research agency.

The board of Directors hold regular meetings at which key strategic decisions are discussed and approved.

Approval
This report was approved by the board of directors and signed on its behalf by:

K?M Sweinatace

K Suematsu
Director

23 June 2021
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Directors Report

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Matters included in the Strategic Report

In accordance with s414(C) (11) of the Companies Act, included in the Strategic Report is information
relating to the future development of the business which would otherwise be required by Schedule 7 of the
‘large and medium sized companies and groups (accounts and reports) regulations 2008’ to be contained
in a Directors’ Report. : :

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Foreign currency risk
The group is exposed to foreign currency risk with its transactions dominated in foreign currencies.
Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policies set out by the Board of Directors.

At 31 March 2021 the group had hedged the majority of its foreign currency commitments which existed
at the statement of financial position (2020: same). See note 36 for further hedging arrangement details.

Interest rate risk _
The group’s policy is to manage its cost of borrowing using a mix of fixed and variable rate debt
depending upon market conditions.

Credit risk

The risk of financial loss due to a counterparty’s failure to honour its obligations arises principally in
relation to transactions where the group provides goods and services, enters into derivative contracts
requiring settlement by the other party and invests or deposits surplus cash.

Group policies are aimed at minimising such losses, and require that terms are only granted to customers
who demonstrate an appropriate payment history and satisfy creditworthiness procedures. Individual
exposures are monitored to ensure that the group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant. Where
appropriate, credit insurance is obtained by the group to mitigate exposures.

Liquidity risk

The group seeks to mitigate liquidity risk by managing cash generation by its operations and applying
cash collection targets throughout the group. Investment is carefully controlled with authorisation limits
operating up to the group and parent company board level, and investment return criteria are applied as
part of the investment appraisal.

The group$ funding strategy is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of overdrafts and loans from external banks and group companies.

Price risk

Other than as stated above (foreign currency risk section) the group hedges the cost of raw material prices
where deemed necessary. No speculative trading in derivative financial instruments is undertaken by the
group. ) '

Dividends

The directors propose to pay a final dividend out of reserves on the ordinary shares of £7,357,500 (2020:
final dividend paid of £5,317,500), together with the interim dividend paid of £10,050,000 (2020:
£4,279,000) makes a total of £17,407,500 (2020: £9,596,500). Further details of dividends paid during the
year are included in note 10.

Dividends paid after the year end are accounted for in accordance with IAS 10 ‘Events after the Reporting
Period’.

Political and charitable contributions

The group made charitable donations amounting to £215,000 during the year ended 31 March 2021
(2020: £42,000). Corporate Social Responsibility is a fundamental aspect of Princes business strategy and
the company financially supports various charities and not-for-profit sustainability organisations which
are aligned to its corporate responsibility principles. Within the year the majority of these donations were
to the food waste and hunger charity FareShare. There were no political contributions (2020: same).

»
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Directors’ report (contlnued)

Directors -

The directors, who served during the year and thereafter, unless otherwise noted below, are as follows:

W Kato (Resigned 1 April 2021)

N Spruyt (Resigned 1 Aprll 2021)
M Oda

C Mackintosh

S Cardall

Y Shimazu

K Suematsu

T Arakawa (Resigned 1 April 2021)
I Kano (Resigned 1 April 2020)

Y Katayama (Appointed 1 April 2020)
K Ito (Appointed 1 April 2021)

Overseas Branches .
Princes Limited has no overseas branches. Further details of other associated companies are included in
notes 15 and 16.

Disabled employees

Applications for employment by disabled persons are always fully considered, bearing in mind the
aptitudes of the applicant concerned. In the event of members of staff becoming disabled every effort is
made to ensure that their employment with the group continues and that appropriate training is arranged. It
is the policy of the group that the training, career development and promotion of disabled persons should,
as far as possible, be identical to that of other colleagues.

Employee engagement :

Details of how the directors have engaged with colleagues; and how the directors have had regard to
colleague interests, and the effect of that regard, including on the principal decisions taken by the
company during the financial year can be found in the ‘Section 172 Statement’ included in the Strategic
Report.

Business Relationships

Details of how the directors have had regard to the need to foster the company’s business relationships
with suppliers, customers and others, and the effect of that regard, including on the principal decisions
taken by the company during the financial year can be found in the ‘Section 172 Statement’ included in
the Strategic Report.

Energy and Carbon Reporting
In Accordance with part 15 of the Compames Act 2006, included in the directors’ report is Prmces energy
use & associated greenhouse gas emissions for the year ending 31% March 2021.

2021 2020
Energy consumptionused to calculateemissions: (kW h) 293,140,903 303,766,992
‘Emissions from thecombustionof gas 39,561 39,370
Emissions from thecombustionof fuel fortransport purposes 1,007 - 1,023
Emissions from business travelinrentalcars oremployeeowned vehiclesw 29 139
herecompanyis responsible for purchasing the fuek
Emissions from purchased electricity 17,084 21,509
Total grosstCO2ebased on the above: 57,681 62,041
Intensity ratio: GrosstCO2e/ £1m revenue 36 40

8
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Directors’ report (continued)

Methodology

Gas and electricity usage has been collected using data from 3" party meter readings, business mileage
has been collected by collating data from Princes employee expense system and fuel usage has been
estimated by using the amounts expensed in the year. Usage volumes have been multiplied by the Gov.uk
greenhouse gas reporting conversion factors to arrive at the reported figures above. Energy use is
presented in Gross Calorific Value kWh (kWh) & emissions are presented in Tonnes of CO2 equivalent
(tCO2e). ‘

Princes have taken the option to exclude energy usage for subsidiaries that would not itself be obliged to
include if reporting on its own account. 50% of Edible Oils Limited’s energy use has been included in the
Princes group report equating to Princes equity share of the joint venture.

Energy Efficiency Action

In the period covered by the report the report Princes have conducted site surveys of our Bradford and
Long Sutton sites to form our 2030 Decarbonisation Roadmap which aims to achieve zero carbon
emissions from our manufacturing sites by 2030. A number of other initiatives such as the installation of
solar panels at UK sites were originally scheduled for this year however have been pushed back due to
access restrictions during the COVID-19 pandemic. :

Statement of corporate governance arrangements

Princes have not applied a recognised corporate governance code for the financial year; instead as a
wholly owned subsidiary follow the corporate governance principles of the wider Mitsubishi Corporation
group. Mitsubishi Corporation’s principles are derived and based upon the Audit & Supervisory Board
Member code of corporate governance.

The key principles Princes épplied in the year are:

Purpose and Leadership '

Our vision is to proudly help families to eat well without costing the earth.
Our Mission: We will deliver sustainable, profitable growth by:

Being an employer of choice where our colleagues are proud to represent our business
Embracing consumer insight and evolving to meet their changing needs through innovation
Serving our customers to the highest standards as a trusted first choice partner

Sourcing raw materials responsibly and ethically, adding value throughout our supply chain to
provide great tasting food and drink. .

The board promotes above purpose of the Group and ensures that Princes values, strategy and culture
align with our purpose.

Composition

The Executive Chairman leads the Board and ensures that the views of all Directors are considered in the
decision-making process.

Although there are no independent directors on the board, the Directors are highly experienced business
leaders and frequently consider the interests of a broad range of stakeholders (including employees,
customers, suppliers & joint venture partners) in their decision-making processes. The board also includes
expat directors from Princes ultimate parent Mitsubishi Corporation that ensure the parent entities
interests are represented on the board and that views from outside of Princes are represented.

The Directors believe that the Board is of an appropriate size for the size and complexity of the business.

Princes maintains’ an internal audit team which conducts frequent audits across the business on a regular
basis. Furthermore, Princes is also subject to audits from Mitsubishi Corporation and from externally
instructed auditor’s to ensure continued compliance with all relevant legal requirements.
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Directors’ report (continued)

Directors Responsibilities ]

The Directors’ have clear well defined roles and responsibilities. As discussed in the ‘Section 172
statement’ above the Board takes into account the impact on a wide range of stakeholders when making
strategic decisions.

The Directors receive detailed information relating to the operations and performance of the Group, both
through periodic meetings and ad-hoc full Board meetings when required. '

During the year the Group continued to build on the already well developed internal control framework
which is managed by our dedicated internal audit team.

Opportunity and Risk )
The Board seeks to capitalise on opportunities (for example through capital investment, joint venture
agreements and merger and acquisitions) while mitigating risks where possible.

The Board are also committed to new product development and innovation in order to remain competitive
and break into new market segments. Risks of product failure are mitigated through.extensive market
research prior to launching new products.

Remuneration :

The Board have the responsibility of developing, maintaining and implementing remuneration policies.
The overriding objective of such policies is to attract and retain high-calibre individuals with a
competitive reward packages based on the achievement of performance targets. These are linked to
individual performance and accountability, and support the Groupd commitment to becoming an
employer of choice while rewarding long-term value creation.

The Board ensures that levels of compensation across the Group are sufficiently competitive to retain
talent within the Group.

Stakeholders .
Details of how the Directors engage with some of our key stakeholders, including our workforce,
suppliers and customers can be found in the ‘Section 172 Statement’ included in the Strategic Report.

Auditor

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

(1) so far as the director.is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s
auditor is unaware; and

(2) the director has taken all the steps that he ought to have taken as a director in order to make
himself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is
aware of that information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

This report was approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on XX September 2021.
Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors: |
K?wfj@ Swamatae

K Suematsu
Director

23 June 2021

10
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Directors responsibilities statement

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance
with applicable law and regulations. . :

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law

‘the directors have elected to prepare the group statements in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRSs) in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 and have
also chosen to prepare the parent company financial statements under IFRSs in conformity with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006. Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the group and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, International Accounting Standard 1 requires that directors:

properly select and apply accounting policies;
present information, including accounting policies, in a manner that provides relevant, reliable,
comparable and understandable information;

. provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specific requirements in IFRSs are
insufficient to enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions, other events and
conditions on the entity’s financial position and financial performance; and

. make an assessment of the company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and
explain the company’ transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial
position of the company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for
taking steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

11
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Princes Limited
Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion the financial statements of Princes Limited (the ‘parent company’) and its subsidiaries (the

‘group’):

. give a true and fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 31
March 2021 and of the group’s profit for the year then ended;

. have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in conformity
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

. have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial statements which comprise:

the consolidated income statement;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income;

the consolidated and parent company balance sheets;

the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity;
the consolidated cash flow statement; and

the related notes 1 to 36.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and
international accounting standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the group and the parent company in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s
(the ‘FRC’s’) Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the group’s and parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from when the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the directors with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.
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Princes Limited and Subsidiaries

Registered No: 02328824

Independent auditor’s report to the members of Princes Limited
(continued)

Other Information

The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information
contained within the annual report. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other
information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the
audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to a material
misstatement in the financial statements themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent
company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the
group or the parent company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the
FRC’s website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s
report.

13
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of Princes Limited
(continued)

Extent to which the audit was considered capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud ‘

Irregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design
procedures in line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of
irregularities, including fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting irregularities,
including fraud is detailed below.

We considered the nature of the group’s industry and its control environment, and reviewed the group’s
documentation of their policies and procedures relating to fraud and compliance with laws and
regulations. We also enquired of management about their own identification and assessment of the risks of"
irregularities.

We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory framework that the group operates in, and
identified the key laws and regulations that:

o had a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. These included UK Companies Act, pensions legislation, tax legislation etc; and

¢ do not have a direct effect on the financial statements but compliance with which may be fundamental
to the group’s ability to operate or to avoid a material penalty. These included environmental
regulations.

We discussed among the audit engagement team including significant component audit teams and relevant -
internal specialists such as tax, valuations, pensions and IT regarding the opportumtles and incentives that
may exist within the organisation for fraud and how and where fraud might occur in the financial
statements.

As a result of performing the above, we identified the greatest potential for fraud within the valuation of
rebate accrual which is driven by a manual input of the agreement into the accounting system and the
complex accounting treatment and level of judgement involved could lead to the manipulation of the
rebates calculated at year end due to pressures to meet stakeholder expectations. '

In common with all audits under ISAs (UK), we are also required to perform specific procedures to
respond to the risk of management override. In addressing the risk of fraud through management override
of controls, we tested the appropriateness of journal entries and other adjustments; assessed whether the
Jjudgements made in making accounting estimates are indicative of a potential bias; and evaluated the
business rationale of any significant transactions that are unusual or outside the normal course of business.

In addition to the above, our procedures to respond to the risks identified included the following:

e reviewing financial statement disclosures by testing to supporting documentation to assess
compliance with provisions of relevant laws and regulations described as having a direct effect on the
financial statements;

e performing analytical procedures to identify any unusual or unexpected relatlonshlps that may
indicate risks of material misstatement due to fraud;

e enquiring of management, internal audit and external legal counsel concerning actual and potential
litigation and claims, and instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations; and

* reading minutes of meetings of those charged with governance and reviewing internal audit reports.

14
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Independent auditor’sAreport to the members of Princes Limited
(continued)

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

¢ the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which
the financial statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

o the strategic report and the directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal
requirements.

* In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the group and of the parent company and their
environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the
strategic report or the directors’ report.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our
opinion: . '
e adequate accounting records have not been kept by the parent company, or returns adequate for our
audit have not been received from branches not visited by us; or ]
e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns;
or ,
certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or
we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters
Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s
members those matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To
the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the
company and the company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we
have formed.

&WC\IW.

David Crawford, FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP

Statutory Auditor

Manchester, United Kingdom

23 June 2021
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Registered No: 02328824

Consolidated income statement

For the year'ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
Notes £°000 £°000
Revenue 2 1,558,575 1,533,093
Costofsales (1,278,349) (1,260,740)
Gross profit 280,226 272,353
Distribution costs (81,909) (88,355)
Administrativeexpenses (158,174) (156,590)
Shareofresults ofassociates 16,17 7,339 5,750
(232,744) (239,195)
Operating profit 47,482 33,158
Financecosts 8 (2,207) (2,747) )
Profitbeforetax 45275 30,411
Tax -9 (8,528) (7,979)
Profit for theyear fromcontinuingoperations ’ 4 36,747 22,432-
Profit for theyear attributableto:
Ownersofthe Company ’ 34,815 19,193
Non-controlling interests 1,932 3,239
36,747 22,432

All revenue and operating profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 relate solely to the group’s continuing
operations (2020: same).
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Registered No: 02328824 : :

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Group
Notes 2021 2020
£°000 £°000
Profit for theyear : 36,747 22,432
Othercomprehensiveincome: N
Items that will not bereclassified subsequentiytoprofitorloss:
Remeasurem‘entofnetdefinedbenefit asset 31 ‘ (33,304) 7,791
Taxrelating to items that willnot bereclassified subsequently 9 6,074 (1,579)
(27,230) 6,212
Items that may bereclassifiedsubsequently toprofitor loss:
Exchangedifferencesontranslationof foreignoperations (3,287) 2,513
Hedging _ ' (14,391) 11,749
Taxrelating to items that may bereclassified subsequently 9 2,832 (2,259)
(14,846) 12,003
Total other comprehensive (loss) / Income (42,076) 18,215
Totalcomprehensive(Loss)/incomefortheyear (5,329) 40,647
Total comprehensive (Loss)/incomeattributableto:
Ownersofthe Company (5,224) 36,111
Non-controlling interests (105) 4,536
(5,329) 40,647
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Princes Limited and Subsidiaries
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Registered No: 02328824 ' .

Consolidated statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2021

2021 2020
© Notes £°000 £°000
Non-currentassets
Goodwill ' 11 44,447 44,447
Otherintangibleassets : 12 23,998 24 962
Property, plantand equipment i 13 446,072 421,606
Right-of-use Assets 28 71,642 84,259
Interests inassociates 16 8,636 9,022
Investments 17 36,944 34,900
Deferred taxasset 25 1,622 0
Derivative financial instruments ‘ 24 2 20
Retirementbenefitsurplus 31 41,085 70,947
674,448 690,163
Currentassets
Inventories - . ’ 18 300,633 294,603
Tradeand other re‘cei'vables 19 200,427 227,547
Currenttaxreceivables 0 192
Cashandbank balances 6,908 2,436
Derivative financial instruments 24 1,052 8,387
509,020 533,165
Assets classified asheld forsale 20 2,319 8,143
Totalassets 1,185,787 - 1,231,471
Currentliabilities .
Tradeand other payables - 21 (196,089) (199,893)
Currenttax liabilities ' (2.246) ' .
Lease Liabilities 28 (11,630) (12,968)
Borrowings 22 (379,869) (360,818)
Provisions 26 (8,211) (16,065)
Derivative financial instruments 24 (9,507) (2,422)
Deferred revenue 32 (96) (96)
(607,648) (592,262)
Non-currentliabilities
Borrowings ' 22 (146,996) (171,227)
Retirementbenefitobligations : 31 (4,548) ‘ (3,265)
Deferred tax liability ’ 25 (26,251) (30,886)
Deferredrevenue 32 (3,341) (3,441)
Lease Liabilities : 28 (60,035) (72,127)
Long-termprovisions - 26 (771) (704)
Derivative financial instruments 24 (82) 17
(242,024) (281,667)
Totalliabilities (849,672) (873,929)
Netassets 336,115 357,542

18



" Princes Limited and Subsidiaries
|
Registered No: 02328824 . .

Consolidatéd statement of financial position (continued)
As at 31 March 2021 -

2021 2020

Notes £°000 £°000
Equity
Sharecapital 27 7,000 . 7,000
Capitalredemptionreserve 5,400 5,400
Equity reserve (5,665) (5,665)
Hedging reserve (6,960) 4,599
Translation reserve 1,929 4,163
Retained earnings 300,186 306,985
Equityattributabletoowners of the Company ’ 301,890 322,482
Non-controlling interest 33 34,225 35,060
Total equity ’ 336,115 357,542

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 23 June 2021.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors:

M Oda
Director
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Princes Limited and Subsidiaries

Registered No: 02328824

.Company statement of financial position
As at 31 March 2021 :

Notes
Non-qurrent assets
Goodwill 11
Otherintangible assets . _ 12
Property,plantand equipment . - 13
Right-of-use Assets 28
Investment property 14
Investments is5
Tradeand otherreceivables ’ 19
Deferred taxasset 25
Derivative financial instruments ’ 24
Retirement benefit surplus ) 31
Current assets
Inventories 18
Tradeandotherreceivables 19
Current taxreceivables
Cashandbank balances
Derivative financial instruments 24
Assets classified as held forsale . 20
Total assets
Current liabilities
Tradeandother payables ’ 21
Current tax liabilities
Lease Liabilities : 28
Borrowings 22
Provisions ' 26
Derivative financial instruments 24
Deferred revenue ’ 32
Non-current liabilities
Borrowings 22
Deferred tax liability 25
Lease Liab ilities ’ 28
Deferred revenue 32
Long-termprovisions 26
Derivative financial instruments ) 24

Total liabilities

Net assets

2021 2020
£000 £000
45,320 45,320
23,998 24,962
330,551 298,027
57,401 64,230
3,700 3,889
109,184 97,135
42,755 44,612
1,527 .
2 13
41,085 70,947
655,523 649,135
170,400 151,909
243,343 280,803
- 448
2,691 63
647 7,354
417,081 440,577
2,319 8,143
1,074,923 1,097,855
(167,526) (173,468)
(2,195) -
(6,927) (7,549)
(362,576) (325,765)
(8,211) (16,065)
(8,604) (1,684)
(96) (96)
(556,135) (524,627)
(188,406) (210,081)
(27,133) (30,126)
(50,652) (57,459)"
(3,330) (3,427)
71) (704)
(82) (%)
(270,374) (301,802)
(826,509) (826,429)
248,414 271,426
.2
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Princes Limited and Subsidiaries

Registered No: 02328824

Company statement of financial position (continued)

As at 31 March 2021

2021 2020

Notes £000 " £000
Equity
Sharecapital 27 . 7,000 7,000
Capitalredemptionreserve 5,400 5,400
Equity reserve (5,665) (5,665)
Hedgingreserve (6,556) 4,363
Translationreserve .
Retained earnings 248,235 260,328
To!_alequity ) 248,414 271,426

The company reported a profit before impairment losses of £47,601,000 (2020: £32,554,000) for the

financial year ended 31 March 2021.

The company reported a profit after impairment losses of £28,800,000 (2020: £10,873,000) for the financial

year ended 31 March 2021.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 23 June 2021.

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors:

M Oda
Director
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Princes Limited and Subsidiaries

Registered No: 02328824

Consolidated statement of changes in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Balanceat31March2019

Profitfortheyear
Othercomprehensiveincome for

theyear

Totalcom prehensiveincome
forthe year

Dividends (secnote 10)
Balanceat31March2020
Profitfortheyear

Othercomprehensiveexpense for

theyear

Totalcom prehensiveexpense

forthe year

Dividends (seenote 10)

Balanceat 3t March2021

The capital redemption reserve contains the premium arising on issue of equity shares. -

Capital Non-
Share reJemplinn Equity Hedging Translation Retained controlling Total '
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interest equity
£'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'060 £'000 £°000 £'000 £°000 ’
7,000 5,400 (5,665) (4,891) 3,359 285,659 290,862 3r,273 322,135
19,193 19,193 3,239 22,432
9.490 804 6,624 16,918 1,297 18,215
9,490 804 25,817 36,111 4,536 40,647
) R (4,491) (4,491) (749) (5,240)
7,000 5,400 (5,665) 4,599 4,163 306,985 322,482 35,060 357,542
34,815 34,815 1,932 36,747
(11,559) (2,234) (26,246) (40,039) (2,037) (42,076)
(11,559) (2,234) 8,569 (5.224) (105) (5,329)
- - (15,368) (15,368) (730) (16,098) _
7,000 5,400 (5,665) (6,960) 1,929 300,186 30i,890 34,225 336,115

The equity reserve relates to the adjustment to the fair value of the brand acquired through the company
increasing its holding in Napolina Limited from 76% to 100% on 12 August 2013.

The hedging reserve relates to the gains and losses arising on the effective portion of hedging instruments

carried out at fair value in a qualifying cash flow hedge.

The translation reserve represents the gains and losses arising on retranslating the net assets of overseas

operations into sterling.

The retained earnings are all other net gains and losses and transactions with owners (e.g. dividends) not

recognised elsewhere.

The non-controlling interest relates to minority interests in Princes Tuna (Mauritius) Limited, Indico
Canning Limited & West Yorkshire Industrial Estates (Management) Limited.
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Registered No: 02328824

Company statement of changes'in equity
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Capital

Share redemption Equity Hedging . Translation "Retained
capital reserve reserve reserve reserve ' earnmings Total
£°000 £'000 £'000 £°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Balance at31 March 2019 7,000 5,400 (5,665) (5,251) - 247,100 248,584
Profitfor the year - - - - - 10,873
. Other comprehensive
(loss)/ income for the year - - - 9,614 - 6,846
Totalcom prehensive
income for the year - - - 9,614 - 17,719 27,333
Dividends (see note 10) - - - - - (4,491)
Balance at 31 March 2020 7,000 5,400 (5,665) 4,363 - 260,328 271,426
Profit for the year - - - - - 28,800
Other comprehensive '
(loss)/ income for the year - - - (10,919) - (25,525) (36,444)
Total com p'rehensive
income for the year < - - (10,919) - 3,275
Dividends (see note 10) - - - - - (15,368)
Balance at31 March 2021 7,000 5,400 (5,665)

The capital redemption reserve contains the premium arising on issue of equity shares.

The equity reserve relates to the adjustment to the fair value of the brand acquired through the company
increasing its holding in Napolina Limited from 76% to 100% on 12 August 2013,

The hedging reserve relates to the gains and losses arising on the effective portion of hedging instruments
carried out at fair value in a qualifying cash flow hedge.

The translation reserve represents the gains and losses arising on retranslating the net assets of overseas
operations into sterling. Following the transfer of these operations into another group company, the
translation reserve has been released to retained earnings.

The retained earnings are all other net gains and losses and transactlons with owners (e.g. dividends) not
recognised elsewhere.

The company reported a profit before impairment losses of £47,601,000 (2020: £32,554,000) for the
financial year ended 31 March 2021.

The company reported a profit after impairment losses of £28,800,000 (2020: £10,873 000) for the
financial year ended 31 March 2021.
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Princes Limited and Subsidiaries ‘ A
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Registered No: 02328824

Consolidated cash flow statement
For the year ended 31 March 2021

2021 2020
Notes £°000 £000
Netcash flows from operating activities 34 81’55; (10,073)
Investing activities
Dividends received fromassociates 5,000 2,500
Purchaseof property,plantandequipment 13 (89,921) (97,191)
Proceeds fromsaleofproperty, plant and equipment 41,063 137
Net cgshflows used ininvesting activities (43,858) (94,554)
Financeactivities
Dividends paid 10 (15,368) (4,491)
Dividends paidtonon-controlling interest (730) (749)
Proceeds'fromloans and borrowings : 2,235 137,427
Repaymentof borrowings ' (2,141) (26,702)
Repayment of lease liabilities (11,945) (8,935)
. Netcash flows geherated by finance activities (27,949) 96,550
Netincrease/ (decrease)incashand cashequivalents 9,746 (8,077)
Cashand cashequivalents at beginning of year 2,436 8,546
Effect of foreign exchangeratechanges (5,274) 1,967
Cashand bank balances atend of year 6,908 2,436
2021 2020
Cash and bank balances: £'000 £°000
Cashat bank 6,902 2,428
Cashinhand ) 6 8
6,908 2,436
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Princes Limited and Subsidiaries

Registered No: 02328824

Company cash flow statement

For the year ended 31 -March 2021

Netcash flows from operating activities

Investing activities

Dividends received fromassociates
Investments insubsidiaries
Purchaseofproperty,plantandequipment

A dditionstoinvestment property

Proceeds fromsaleof property, plant and equipment

Netcashflowsused ininvesting activities
Finance activities
Dividends paid

Proceeds fromloansand borrowings

Repayment of lease liabilities

Netcash flows generated by finance activities

Netincreaseincashand cashequivalents
Cashand cashequivalents at beginning of year

Effect of foreignexchangeratechanges
Cashand bank balances at end of year
Cashand bank balances:

Cashatbank
Cashin hand

Notes

34

15
13
14

10

2021 2020
£000 £°000
76,940 (12,989)
5,757 3,318
(30,850) (19,058)
(82,176) (85,454)
(6) 97)
40,929 -
(66,346) (101,291)
" (15,368) (4,491)
20,030 123,989
(7,734) (5,188)
(3,072) 114,311
7,522 30
63 33
(4,894) -
2,691 63
2021 2020
£000 £000
2,685 55
6 3
2,691 63
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Notes to the financial statements
For the year ended 31 March 2021

Accounting policies

1.1 General information

Princes Limited (the “Company”) is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United
Kingdom and registered in England and Wales under the Companies Act. The address of the registered
office is given on page 1. The nature of the group’s operations and its principal activities are set out in the
strategic report, on page 2.

These financial statements are presented in pounds sterling because that is the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the group operates. Foreign operations are included in accordance with
the policies set out in note 1.3. .

1.2 Adoption of new and revised Standards
In the current year, the following new and revised Standards and Interpretations have been adopted and:
have affected the amounts reported in these financial statements.

Standards affecting the financial statements

The following standards and interpretations have come into effect during the year. The adoption of these
amendments has not had any material impact on the disclosures or amounts reported in these financial
statements.

Amendments to IFRS Standards References to Conceptual Framework

Amendments to IFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 Definition of Material

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

IFRS 7

Amendments to IFRS 4 , Extension of the Temporary Exemption from Applying IFRS 9
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2021

1. Accounting policies (continued)

1.2 Adoption of new and revised Standards (continued)

‘At the date of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations which have not been
applied in these financial statements were in issue but not yet effective.

Amendment to IFRS 16 (Effective 01 | COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
Jun 2020)

Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 . ’
(Effective 01 Jan 2021)

Amendments to IAS 37 (Effective 01 | Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
Jan 2022)

Annual Improvements to IFRS
Standards 2018-2020 (Effective 01
Jan 2022) -

Amendments to IAS 16 (Effective 01 | Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use
o Jan 2022) :

Amendments to IFRS 3 (Effective 01 | Reference to the Conceptual Framework
Jan 2022)

IFRS 17 (Effective 01 Jan 2023) Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 1 (Effective 01 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current
» Jan 2023)

¥ Amendments to IFRS 17 (Effective
01 Jan 2023)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 | Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
(Optional) Associate or Joint Venture

The directors do not expect that the adoption of the Standards listed above will have a material impact on
the financial statements of the group in future periods.

Standards will all be applied in the first financial period following the effective date.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2021

1.3 Significant accounting policies

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with international accounting standards in
conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The financial statements have been prepared on the hlstorlcal cost basis, except for the revaluation of
financial instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting period, as explained in
the accounting policy below. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given
in exchange for the assets. The principal accounting policies adopted are set out below.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset
or a liability, the group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants
would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial statements is
determined on such a basis.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

e Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

¢ Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

¢ Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the company and entities
controlled by the company (its subsidiaries) made up to 31-March each year. Control is achieved where
the company has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an investee entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities.

Basis of consolidation

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting
policies used into line with those used by the group. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and
expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are identified separately from the group’s equity therein. Those
interests of non-controlling shareholders that are present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets upon liquidation may initially be measured at fair value or at the non-
controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the acquiree’ identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement is made on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis. Subsequent to acquisition, the
carrying amount of non-controlling interests is the amount of those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interests’ share of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2021

1. Accounting policies (continued)
1.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Investments in joint ventures-

In the group financial statements investments in joint ventures are accounted for using the equity method.
The group income statement includes the group’ share of joint ventures profits less losses while the
group’s share of the net assets of the joint ventures is shown in the group balance sheet.

Other investments

Other fixed asset investments are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Changes in the
group’s interests in subsidiaries that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions. The carrying amount of the group’s interests and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount by
which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the company.

Going concern

The Directors are required to prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is

inappropriate to presume that the group will continue in business. In satisfaction of this responsibility the

directors have reviewed in detail the business’ cash flow projections, together with the availability of
undrawn borrowing facilities, for a period of greater than 12 months from the date of approval of these
financial statements. The group remained profitable in the year with profit from continuing operations of
£36,747,000 and generated net cash flows of £9,746,000 despite the large scale capital projects taking
place in the year. This profitability and cash generation from day to day operations is expected to continue
into the future. Notwithstariding the net current liability position at 31 March 2021 the directors have a
reasonable expectation that the company and the group have adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future.

The Directors forecasts have incorporated the effect of COVID-19 on cash flows. The impact overall has
had a positive effect on both the profit and cash flow forecasts. This is due to the fact that Princes being a
food and drinks manufacturer provide essential products thus have seen a large increase in demand since
lockdown measures have been put in place across the countries we operate in. The effect of Covid-19 is
discussed in more detail in the future developments section of the Strategic report.

The group is profitable and cash generative from day to day operations. Further detail of the group3
performance is contained in the Strategic Report on pages 2-6 and details of the group$ borrowing
facilities are included in note 22. Borrowings from a subsidiary of Princes ultimate parent, Mitsubishi
Corporation which makes up 84% of the total group’s borrowings have been guaranteed and Mitsubishi
Corporation have remained committed to providing the extra funding needed in order to complete the
large capital projects that are underway. In addition, as a result of the net current liability position and the
funding structure of the Princes group through revolving/short term facilities, Mitsubishi Corporation have
issued a letter of support for the group, the Directors have assessed the ability of Mitsubishi Corporation
to support the group and have concluded they have the ability to do so. Thus they continue to adopt the
going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements
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Business combinations

Acquisitions of subsidiaries and businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method. The
consideration for each acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the fair values (at the date of exchange)
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued by the group in exchange for
control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The acquireed identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for
recognition under IFRS 3 (2008) are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date, except that:
deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with IAS 12 Income Taxes and IAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the end of the reporting period in
which the combination occurs, the group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement period (see
below), or additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts’
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised as of that date.

The measurement period is the period from the date of acquisition to the date the group obtains complete
information about facts and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date, and is subject to a
maximum of one year.

Goodwill

Goodwill arising in a business combination is recognised as an asset at the date that control is acquired
(the acquisition date). Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
equity interest (if any) in the entity over the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed.

If, after reassessment, the group’s interest in the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Goodwill is not amortised but is reviewed for impairment at least annually. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated to each of the group’s cash-generating units expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and
then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the group has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these financial statements using the
equity method of accounting, except when the investment is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.
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Investments in associates (continued)

Under the equity method, an investment in an associate is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and therefore adjusted thereafter to recognise the group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the associate. When the group’s share of losses of an
associate exceeds the group’s interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the group’s net investment in the associate), the group discontinues recognising its
share of further losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the group has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Revenue recognition :

Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the group expects to be entitled in a contract
with a customer and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The group recognises revenue
on a single performance obligation which is satisfied when it transfers control of a product or service to a
customer.

The group operates one principal area of activity, that of the importation, manufacture and distribution of
food and drink products. The group also operates within three geographical markets, the United Kingdom,
Rest of Europe and Rest of the World.

The total sales from Edible Oils Limited are included within group turnover as detailed in note 29.

Dividend and interest income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders’ rights to receive payment have
been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably).

Interest income is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the group and the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to
the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Rental income
The group’s policy for recognition of income from operating leases is described on pages 31 and 32.

Leases

The group as lessee

The Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, at inception of the contract. The Group
recognises a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all lease arrangements in
which it is the lessee, except for short-term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less) and leases of low value assets (such as small items of office furniture and telephones). For these
leases, the Group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease unless another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate cannot be readily -
determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate.

For all classes of assets, non-lease components, i.e. service elements, will be separated from the lease
components and thereby not form part of the right-of-use asset and financial lease liability recognised in
the balance sheet.
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Leases (continued) ,
Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise:

"+ Fixed lease payments (including- in-substance fixed payments), less any.lease incentives
receivable;

»  Variable lease payments that depend on an index or rate, initially measured using the index or rate
at the commencement date;

»  The amount expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
«  The exercise price of purchase options, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the options;

»  Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the exercise of an option
to terminate the lease

The lease liability is subsequently measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the
lease liability (using the effective interest method) and by reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made.

The Group remeasures the lease liability (and makes a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-
use asset) whenever:

»  The lease term has changed or there is a significant event or change in circumstances resulting in
a change in the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in which case the lease liability is
remeasured by discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate.

»  The lease payments change due to changes in an index or rate or a change in expected payment
under a guaranteed residual value, in which cases the lease liability is remeasured by discounting
the revised lease payments using an unchanged discount rate (unless the lease payments change is
due to a change in a floating interest rate, in which case a revised discount rate is used).

» A lease contract is modified and the lease modification is not accounted for as a separate lease, in
which case the lease liability is remeasured based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification.

The right-of-use assets comprise the initial measurement of the corresponding lease liability, lease
payments made at or before the commencement day, less any lease incentives received and any initial
direct costs. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Whenever the Group incurs an obligation for costs to dismantle and remove a leased asset, restore the site
on which it is located or restore the underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and conditions
of the lease, a provision is recognised and measured under IAS 37. To the extent that the costs relate to a
right-of-use asset, the costs are included in the related right-of-use asset, unless those costs are incurred to
produce inventories.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter of lease term and useful life of the underlying asset.

If a lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the
Group expects to exercise a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated over the useful
life of the underlying asset. The depreciation starts at the commencement date of the lease.

The Group applies IAS 36 to determine whether a right-of-use asset is impaired and accounts for any
identified impairment loss as described in the ‘Property, Plant and Equipment’ policy.

Variable rents that do not depend on an index or rate are not included in the measurement the lease
liability and the right-of-use asset. The related payments are recognised as an expense in the period in
which the event or condition that triggers those payments occurs and are included in the line ‘Other
expenses” in profit or loss ’
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Foreign currencies

The individual financial statements of each group company are presented in the currency of the primary
economic environment in which it operates (its functional currency). For the purpose of the consolidated
financial statements, the results and financial position of each group company are expressed in pound
sterling, which is the functional currency of the company, and the presentation currency for the
consolidated financial statements.

In preparing the financial statements of the individual companies, transactions in currencies other than the
entity’s functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for exchange
differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks (see below under financial
instruments / hedge accounting).

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial statements, the assets and liabilities of the group’s
foreign operations are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Income and
expense items are translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences arising, if
any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity (attributed to non-
controlling interests as appropriate).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing rate. The group has elected to treat goodwill
and fair value adjustments arising on acquisitions before the date of transition to IFRSs as sterling-
denominated assets and liabilities.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise deposits with banks and
financial institutions, and bank and cash balances. In the balance sheet, bank overdrafts are included in
current borrowings.

Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Research and development
Research and development expenditure is written off as incurred. R&D tax credits are mcluded within -
operating profit.

Operating profit

Operating profit is stated after the share of results of associates but before investment income and finance
costs.
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Retirement benefit costs A

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution schemes where the group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due.
Payments made to state-managed retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as payments to defined
contribution schemes where the group’s obligations under the schemes are equivalent to those arising in a .
defined contribution retirement benefit scheme.

For defined benefit retirement benefit schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, with actuarial valuations being carried out at the end of each reporting
period. Remeasurement comprising actuarial gains and losses and the return on scheme assets (excluding
interest) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credit to the statement of
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Remeasurement recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income is not recycled. Usual practice in the UK is for the remeasurement, included in the
statement of comprehensive income, to be taken to retained earnings but this is not a requirement of the
standard. Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in the period of scheme amendment. Net-interest
is calculated by applying a discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. Defined benefit costs
are split into three categories:

— current and past service cost;
— net-interest expense or income; and
— remeasurement.

The group presents the first component of defined benefit costs within administrative expenses (see note
31) in its consolidated income statement. Net-interest expense or income is recognised within finance
costs (see note 8).

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the consolidated balance sheet represents the deficit or
surplus in the group’s defined benefit schemes. Any surplus resuiting from this calculation is limited to
the present value of any economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the schemes or
reductions in future contributions to the schemes.

Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as
reported in the income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The group’s
liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax liabilities are
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
from the initial recognition of goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
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Taxation (continued)
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences. arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint ventures, except where the group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or. the asset is realised based on tax laws and rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it
relates to items charged or credited in other comprehensive income, in which case the deferred tax is also
dealt with in other comprehensive income. o

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority and the group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Property, plant and equipment

Land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative
purposes, are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised
impairment losses.

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes, or for purposes
not yet determined, are carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the group’s accounting
policy. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the
assets are ready for their intended use.

Freehold land is not depreciated.

Fixtures and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any recognised impairment
loss. '

Depréciation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets (other than land and properties
under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives, using the straight-line method, on the
following bases:

Land and Buildings:

Freehold buildings - over 33-50 years

Leasehold land & buildings - over 50 years or period of lease, if less
Plant Machinery & Equipment:

None Vehicle Plant, machinery & equipment - over 2-30 years

Vehicles - over 2-10 years

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets or, where shorter, over the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or scrappage of an asset is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in income.
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Investment property o

Investment property, which is property held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes), is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any
recognised impairment losses. Depreciation is assessed on a straight line basis, over the asset’s useful life
(50 years).

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately from goodwill are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired in a business combination with finite useful
lives are reported at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible
assets acquired in a business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses.

Intangible assets identified as having indefinite useful lives are influenced by the nature of the business
and the lifespan of the products sold to which the intangible assets relate.

Brands and licences with finite useful lives are measured initially at purchase cost and are amortised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Brands and licences with indefinite useful lives are
carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets excluding goodwill

At each balance sheet date, the group reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Where the asset does not generate cash flows that are independent from other
assets, the group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.
An intangible asset with an indefinite useful life is tested for impairment at least annually and whenever
there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which
the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or cash-generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which
case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.
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Inventories .
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value as follows.

. raw materials, packaging and goods purchased for resale — purchase cost on a first in first out basis;
and .

. manufactured goods — cost of direct materials and labour plus attributable overheads based on
normal level of activity.

Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to
completion and disposal. .

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the group’s statement of financial position when
the group becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair
value, depending on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification of financial assets
Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at amortised cost:

e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions are measured subsequently at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

e The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows-and selling the financial assets; and

o The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

By default, all other financial assets are measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).

Despite the foregoing, the group may make the following irrevocable election/designation at initial
recognition of a financial asset:

e The group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an equity
investment in other comprehensive income if certain criteria are met (see (iii) below); and
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Financial assets (continued)
¢ The group may irrevocably designate a debt investment that meets the amortlsed cost or FVTOCI
criteria as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch (see (iv) below).

(i) Amortised cost and effective interest method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a debt instrument and of
allocating interest income over the relevant period.

For financial assets other than purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets (i.e. assets that are
credit-impaired on initial recognition), the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) excluding expected losses,
through the expected life or the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the gross
carrying amount of the debt instrument on initial recognition. For purchased or originated credit-impaired
financial assets, a credit-adjusted effective interest rate is calculated by discounting the estimated future
cash flows, including expected credit losses, to the amortised cost of the debt instrument on initial
fecognition.

- The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative amortisation using the effective interest
method of any difference between the initial amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss
allowance. The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost and at FVTOCI. For financial assets other than purchased or originated
credit-impaired financial assets, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If,
in subsequent reporting periods, the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instruments improves so
that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets, the group recognises interest income by
applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from initial
recognition. The calculation does not revert to the gross basis even if the credit risk of the financial asset
subsequently improves so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired.

£33

Interest income is recognised in profit or loss and is included in the “ﬁnance income —mterest income
line item (note 8).

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL :
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI (see (i) to
(iii) above) are measured at FVTPL. Specifically:

e Investments in equity instruments are classified as at FVTPL, unless the Group designates an
equity investment that is neither held for trading nor a contingent consideration arising from a
business combination as at FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (iii) above).
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Financial assets (continued)

e Debt instruments that do not meet the amortised cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria- (see (i) and
(ii) above) are classified as at FVTPL. In addition, debt instruments that meet either the amortised
cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition inconsistency (so
called ‘accounting mismatch’) that would arise from measuring assets or liabilities or recognising
the gains and losses on them on different bases. The group has not designated any debt instruments
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss to the extent they are not part of a designated hedging
relationship (see hedge accounting policy). The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.
Fair value is determined in the manner described earlier in this note on page 37.

Foreign exchange gains and losses
The carrying amount of financial assets that are denominated in.-a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of each reporting period. Specifically;

o For financial assets measured at amortised cost that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship, exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘other gains and losses’
line item;

o For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences on the amortised cost of the debt instrument are recognised in profit or loss in
the ‘other gains and losses’ line item. Other exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the investments revaluation reserve;

e For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item; and

e For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI, exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the investments revaluation reserve.

See hedge accounting policy regarding the recognition of exchange differences where the foreign currency
risk component of a financial asset is designated as a hedging instrument for a hedge of foreign currency
risk.

Impaimment of financial assets

The group recognises a loss allowance for expected credit losses on investments in debt instruments that
are measured at amortised cost or at FVTOCI, lease receivables, trade receivables and contract assets, as
well as on financial guarantee contracts. The amount of expected credit losses is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the respective financial
instrument.

The group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables. The
expected credit losses on these financial assets are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of conditions
at the reporting date, including time value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the group recognises lifetime ECL when there has been significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk on the financial instrument has
not increased significantly since initial recognition, the group measures the loss allowance for that
financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month ECL.
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1.3 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events on a financial instrument that possible within 12 months after
the reporting date.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the group compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the group considers both quantitative and qualitative information that is
reasonable and supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information considered includes the future
prospects of the industries in which the group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and forecast economic information that relate to the
Group’s core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

e An actual or expected significant deterioration in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

o Significant deterioration in external market indicators of credit risk for a particular financial
instrument, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices for the
debtor, or the length of time or the extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been less
than its amortised cost;

¢ Existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

¢ An actual or expected significant deterioration in the operating results of the debtor;
» Significant increases in credit risk on other financial instruments of the same debtor;

e An actual or expected significant adverse change in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the group has reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the group assumes that the credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the financial instrument is determined to have low credit rlsk at the
reporting date. A financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(1) The financial instrument has a low risk of default,
(2) The debtor has a strong capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term, and

(3) Adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow obligations.
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Financial assets (continued)

The group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when the asset has external credit rating of
‘investment grade’ in accordance with the globally understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of ‘performing’. Performing means that the counterparty has a
.strong financial position and there is no past due amounts.

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the group becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment
is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition of a financial guarantee contracts, the group considers the changes in the risk that the specified
debtor will default on the contract.

The group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

(i) Definition of default

The group considers the following as constituting an event of default for internal credit risk management
purposes as historical experience indicates that financial assets that meet either of the following criteria
are generally not recoverable:

e When there is a breach of financial covenants by the debtor; or

¢ Information developed internally or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the group, in full (without taking into account any collateral
held by the group).

' Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default has occurred when a financial asset is
more than 90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information to demonstrate
that a more lagging default criterion is more appropriate.

(iii) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event (see (ii) above);

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or
(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial difficulties.

(iv) Write-off policy

The group writes off a financial asset when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has been placed
under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still be

~ subject to enforcement activities under the group’ recovery procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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(v) Measurement and recognition of expected credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss given default
(i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking
information as described above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented by
the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; -for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure
includes the amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected
to be drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-looking
information.

For financial assets, the expected credit loss is estimated as the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the group in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the group
expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. For a lease receivable, the cash flows
used for determining the expected credit losses is consistent with the cash flows used in measuring the
lease receivable in accordance with [FRS 16 Leases.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required to make paymeénts only in the event of a
default by the debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that is guaranteed, the expected loss
allowance is the expected payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it incurs less any amounts
that the Group expects to receive from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the group has measured the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to lifetime
ECL in the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the conditions for
lifetime ECL are no longer met, the group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month
ECL at the current reporting date, except for assets for which simplified approach was used.

The group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account, except for
investments in debt instruments that are measured at FVTOCI, for which the loss allowance is recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve, and does not
reduce the carrying amount of the financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Derecognition of financial assets

The group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity. If the group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the group recognises its retained interest in the
asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the group retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the group continues to recognise the
financial asset and also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost, the difference between the asset3
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.
In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as at FVTOCI, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to
profit or loss. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the group has
elected on initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated
in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to retained
earnings.
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Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. '

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the group are recognised at the proceeds
received net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the company’s own equity instruments is recognised and deducted directly in equity. No
gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the company’s
own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

~ All financial liabilities are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest method or
at FVTPL.

However, financial liabilities that arise when a transfer of a financial asset.does not qualify for
derecognition or when the continuing involvement approach applies, and financial guarantee contracts
issued by the Group, are measured in accordance with the specific accounting policies set out below.

Financial liabilities measured subsequently at amortised cost

Financial liabilities that are not (i) contingent consideration of an acquirer in a business combination, (ii)
held-for-trading, or (iii) designated as at FVTPL, are measured subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an
integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the
expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the amortised cost of a
financial liability.

Foreign exchange gains and losses

For financial liabilities that are denominated in a foreign currency and are measured at amortised cost at
the end of each reporting period, the foreign exchange gains and losses are determined based on the
amortised cost of the instruments. These foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in the ‘other
gains and losses’ line item in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging
relationship. For those which are designated as a hedging instrument for a hedge of foreign.currency risk
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in a
separate component of equity. :

The fair value of financial liabilities denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that foreign
" currency and translated at the spot rate at the end of the reporting period. For financial liabilities that are

measured as at FVTPL, the foreign exchange component forms part of the fair value gains or losses and is

recognised in profit or loss for financial liabilities that are not part of a designated hedging relationship.
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Derecognition of financial liabilities

The group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the grdup’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the group exchanges with the existing lender one debt instrument into another one with the
substantially different terms, such exchange is accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new financial liability. Similarly the group accounts for substantial
modification of terms of an existing liability or part of it as an extinguishment of the original financial
liability and the recognition of a new liability. It is assumed that the terms are substantially different if the
discounted present value of the cash flows under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees
received and discounted using the original effective rate is at least 10 per cent different from the
discounted present value of the remaining cash flows or the original financial liability. If the. medication is
not substantial, the different between: (1) the carrying amount of the liability before the modification; and
(2) the present value of the cash flows after modification should be recognised in profit or loss as the
modification gain or loss with other gains and losses.

Derivative financial instruments

The group enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its exposure to interest rate
and foreign exchange rate risk, including foreign exchange forward contracts, interest rate swaps and
currency swaps. Further details of derivative financial instruments are disclosed in note 24.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at each reporting date. The resulting gain or loss is recognised
in profit or loss immediately unless the derivative is designated and effective as a hedging instrument, in
which event the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge relationship.

A derivative with a positive fair value is recognised as a financial asset whereas a derivative with a
negative fair value is recognised as a financial liability. Derivatives are not offset in the financial
statements unless the group has both legal right and intention to offset. The impact of the Master Netting
Agreements on the Group’s financial position is disclosed in note 24. A derivative is presented as a non-
current asset or a noneurrent liability if the remaining maturity of the instrument is more than 12 months
and it is not expected to be realised or settled within 12 months. Other derivatives are presented as current
assets or current liabilities.

Hedge accounting
The group designates its derivative hedging instruments in respect of foreign currency risk. Hedges of
foreign exchange risk on firm commitments are accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At the inception of the hedge relationship, the entity documents the relationship between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item, along with its risk management objectives and its strategy for
undertaking various hedge transactions. Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge and on an ongoing
basis, the group documents whether the hedging instrument is effective in offsetting changes in cash flows
of the hedged item attributable to the hedged risk, which is when the hedging relationships meet all of the
following hedge effectiveness requirements:

o There is an economic relationship between the hedged item and the hedging instrument;

¢ The effect of credit risk does not dominate the value changes that result from that economic
relationship; and

o The hedge ratio of the hedging relationship is the same as that resulting from the quantity of the
hedged item that the group actually hedges and the quantity of the hedging instrument that the
group actually uses to hedge that quantity of hedged item.
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Hedge accounting (continued)

If a hedging relationship ceases to meet the hedge effectiveness requirement relating to the hedge ratio but
the risk management objective for that designated hedging relationship remains the same, the group
adjusts the hedge ratio of the hedging relationship (i.e. rebalances the hedge) so that it meets the
qualifying criteria again.

The group designates the full change in the fair value of a forward contract (i.e. including the forward
elements) as the hedging instrument for all of its hedging relationships involving forward contracts.

The group designates only the intrinsic value of option contracts as a hedged item, i.e. excluding the time
value of the option. The changes in the fair value of the aligned time value of the option are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve. If the hedged item is
transactionrelated, the time value is reclassified to profit or loss when the hedged item affects profit or
loss. If the hedged item is timeperiod related, then the amount accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss on a rational basis — the group applies straightline amortisation. Those
reclassified amounts are recognised in profit or loss in the same line as the hedged item. If the hedged
item is a nonfinancial item, then the amount accumulated in the cost of hedging reserve is removed
directly from equity and included in the initial carrying amount of the recognised nonfinancial item.
Furthermore, if the group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in cost of hedging reserve will
not be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to profit or loss.

Note 36 sets out details of the fair values of the derivative instruments used for hedging purposes.

Cash flow hedges .
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash
flow hedges is recognised in other comprehensive income. In the event that there is an ineffective portion,
the gain or loss relating to the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in profit or loss, and is
included in the ‘other gains and losses’ line item.

Amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity are reclassified
to profit or loss in the periods when the hedged item is recognised in profit or loss, in the same line of the
income statement as the recognised hedged item. However, when the forecast transaction that is hedged
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset or a non-financial liability, the gains and losses
previously accumulated in equity are transferred from equity and included in the initial measurement of
the cost of the non-financial asset or non-financial liability. This transfer does not affect other
comprehensive income. Furthermore, if the group expects that some or all of the loss accumulated in the
cash flow hedging reserve will not be recovered in the future, that amount is immediately reclassified to
profit or loss.

The group discontinues hedge accounting only when the hedging relationship (or a part thereof) ceases to
meet the qualifying criteria (after rebalancing, if applicable). This includes instances when the hedging
instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised. The discontinuation is accounted for prospectively.
Any gain or loss recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in cash flow hedge reserve
at that time remains in equity and is reclassified to profit or loss when the forecast transaction occurs.
When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the gain or loss accumulated in cash flow
hedge reserve is reclassified immediately to profit or loss.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a
past event, it is probable that the group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.
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Provisions (continued)
The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the

obligation. Where a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation,
its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be
received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Deferred consideration
Deferred consideration is held within provisions for liabilities and is recorded at the fair value of
consideration payable.

Dividends

A final dividend is recognised when it is declared by the company in general meeting or by the members
passing a written resolution. In the case of an interim dividend authorised under common articles of
association, this will normally be when the dividend is paid. Accordingly, if an interim dividend is
announced before the end of the reporting period but not paid until the next reporting period, this will not
result in a liability at the reporting date.

1.4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the group’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1.3, the directors are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are
based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods. There are no critical accounting judgements that have a material impact on the group financial
statements.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

Impairment of goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment

Determining whether goodwill, intangible assets and property, plant and equipment are 1mpaired requires
an estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units (CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated. The vilue in use calculation requires the entity to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the CGU and a suitable discount rate in order to calculate present value.

The carrying amount of goodwill at the balance sheet date was £44,447,000 (2020: £44,447,000). The
carrying amount of intangible assets with indefinite lives at the balance sheet date was £18,848,000 (2020:
£18,848,000). The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment & right-of-use assets at the balance
sheet date was £517,714,000 (2020: £505,865,000), after an impairment loss of £Nil (2020: £Nil) was
charged to the group income statement.

The group has seven CGUs with material assets attached. Three CGUs have goodwill and intangible
assets assigned to them (Canning, PIA and Napolina). The allocation of assets to CGUs and the
assessment of expected future cash flows at CGU level gives rise to estimation uncertainty. Details of
impairment charges in the year are included in note 13.
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1.4 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued)

Impairment testing is dependent on management’s estimates and judgements, particularly as they relate to
the forecasting of future cash flows, the discount rates selected and expected long-term growth rates. All
CGUs that have goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives assigned to them have been subject to
the annual impairment review process. With the exception of the PIA CGU, which was impaired in the
year ended 31 March 2017 by £19,314,000, each of the group’s CGUs have previously had headroom as a
result of forecasts being greater than carrying values during the annual impairment review. Impact of
COVID-19 on forecasts has been positive across all CGU%. This is considered in detail in the future
developments section of the strategic report.

Canning CGU ,

Notwithstanding an improvement in the performance of the Canning CGU in the current and prior year,
the Canning CGU continued to experience challenging macroeconomic conditions, including currency
devaluations and commodity price increases. The estimated long-term growth rates beyond the forecast
periods included in the impairment model are 1.5% (2020: 1.5%) per annum. Management consider this
assumption to be conservative.

Detailed forecasts for a period of five years have been prepared and management concluded that the assets
were not impaired. The key drivers of the forecast improvement in performance include achievement of
price increases, improved volumes and the realisation of cost savings from large capital investment
projects. At 31 March 2021, headroom was £51,683,000 on a CGU carrying value of £243,050,000 (2020:
headroom of £15,921,000 on a CGU carrying value of £172,186,000). The increase in carrying value is a
result of the large ongoing capital projects at the canning sites.

The critical assumptions underlying the detailed forecasts used in the impairment model are wide-ranging.
The key assumptions that are subject to reasonably possible changes that could lead to a reduction in the
headroom are the discount rate and volume increases. The discount rate used was 7.8% (2020: 8.82%).
The Canning CGU primarily operates in the UK where the factors'that impact the discount rate are
considered to be limited; a 0.25% increase in the discount rate would reduce the headroom by
£11,683,000. Assuming that movements in volume directly correlate to movements in pre-tax cash flows,
volumes would have to fall to below 98.9% (2020: 98.1%) of the forecast volumes before the value in use
falls below the CGU carrying value. Based on the review performed management have concluded that the
carrying value of the Canning CGU included in the financial statements is appropriate.

PI4 CGU

The PIA CGU was impaired by £19,314,000 during the year ended 31 March 2017. This was underpinned
by full strategic review and reduction of the cash flow forecasts for that area of the business which
continues to be reviewed annually as part of the budget process. As part of the prior year review,
management reviewed the underlying asset base of the CGU and have deemed it appropriate to include a
proportion of the Napolina brand that is directly attributable to the products manufactured at PIA.

During the year management have performed a strategic review, to assess a plan which reduces tomato
production in the plant for the future seasons. The rationale being, in the last 3 tomato seasons, PIA has
not been able to process the required level of tomatoes required, due to the impacts of climate changes.
Management recognises that the EU outlook for volume produced from tomato processing in Europe has
reduced over the last 10 years and the longer term horizon to 2030 is expected to remain at the reduced
levels, in main producing countries, such as Italy. Adverse weather conditions and pest diseases are
becoming ever more prevalent conditions for farming, which has directly affected PIA production.
Therefore, albeit the market is not growing, focusing on a smaller supply and working with a more
selected group of farmers that are spread across the region PIA sources tomatoes, it will be able to achieve
the targets set out in the plan.

After the review, it was concluded that the future tomato production plan will focus on producing branded
Napolina products and retaining two strategic UK customer owned brand partnerships, minimises the risk.
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1.5 Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
(continued) '

A critical assumption to achieve improved cashflows is related to the achievement of 100% forecasted
Tomato deliveries from growers. PIAS tomato requirements as a result of the new business plan are
significantly less than in previous years therefore management believe this is achievable. A second critical
assumption is meeting tomato yield and waste targets highlighted by the new business plan. This is to be
achieved, by partnering with a smaller number of reliable tomato growers that have been identified in
previous seasons; 'introduction of new growers; improved contact with growers providing training and
technical support throughout the growing cycle. Along with focused delivery of intakes in the factory with
suppliers.

Other critical assumptions underlying the detailed forecasts used in the impairment model are wide-
ranging, and include average long term growth rates of 1.5% (2020: 1.5%) and a pre-tax discount rate of
8.06% (2020: 8.82%). At 31 March 2021, the impairment headroom is £16,486,000 on a CGU carrying
value of £97,280,000 (2020: headroom of £25,631,000 on a CGU carrying value of £99,132,000). A 10%
reduction in annual cash flows during five year budget/forecast period would reduce the headroom by
£11,559,000. The PIA CGU operates from the manufacturing facility in Italy, with distribution in the UK

and mainland Europe, the factors that impact the discount rate are considered to be broader than those of
the Canning CGU, a 0.5% increase in the discount rate would reduce the headroom by £9,567,000. Due to
the fact a new business plan has been outlined for PIA during the year, a key assumption is the businesses

ability to achieve these newly planned cash flows. Based on the review performed, management have
concluded that the carrying value of the PIA CGU included in the financial statements is appropriate.

Napolina CGU :

Management has concluded that no reasonably possible change in the key assumptions on which it has
determined value in use for the Napolina goodwill and associated intangible assets would cause their
carrying values to exceed value in use.

2. Revenue

Revenue represents the invoiced value of goods sold which fall within the group's continuing ordinary
activities and is stated net of value added tax and trading allowances. Revenue is recognised when the
risk and rewards have been transferred. The total sales from Edible Oils Limited are included within
group revenue as detailed in note 29.

The group operates in one principal area of activity, that of the importation, manufacture and distribution
of food and drink products.

An analysis of the group’s revenue is as follows:

Year ended Year ended
2021 2020
£000 £000
Continuing operations l
Salesofgoods ’ 1,558,575 1,533,093
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3. - Operating segments
The class of business the group operates in is the manufacture, importation and distribution of food and
drink products to the grocery trade.

The group operates within three geographlcal markets, the United Kingdom, Rest of Europe arid Rest of
the World.

Geographtcal information:

The group’s revenue from external customers and information about its segment assets (non-current assets
excluding financial instruments, deferred tax assets, retirement benefit surpluses and other financial
assets) by geographical location are detailed below:

Year ended Year ended
) 2021 2020
Revenue from external customers by location: £°000 £°000
United Kingdom . 1,175,700 1,159,299
Restof Europe 312,702 303,860
Restofthe World: ~ . 70,173 69,934
1,558,575 1,533,093
2021 2020
Consolidated total non-current assets by locationof asset: £°000 £000
United Kingdom 497,055 470,472
Restof Europe 79,834 ’ 86,428
Restofthe W orld 54,850 62,296
,631,739 619,196
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4. Profit for the year

Profit for the year has been arrived at after charging/(crediting):

Year ended Year ended .

2021 2020

£000 £000
Depreciationof property, plantand equipment.(seenotelli) 31,534 29,869
-Depreciationof Rightofuseassets (seenote 28) 11,293 8,692
(Gain)/Lossondisposaloffixedassets & ROU Assets (6,342) 1,748
ReversalofImpairmentof property,plantand equipment(seenote 13) - (3,797)
Incomefrominsurance & legal claims (2,309) (4,118)
Restructuring costs 960 3,835
Researchanddevelopmentcosts 3,643 2,312
Amortisation of otherintangible fixed assets (seenote 12) 964 964
Royalties payable 187 255
Net foreignexchangeLosses /(Gains) 1,753 (288)
Costofinventoriesrecognised as an expense('seenote 18) 1,148,448 1,127,162
Writedownsofinventoriesrecognised as an exp.ense 4,056 2,550
Employeebenefitexpenses (seenote 7) 172,225 167,468

As permitted by section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 the company has elected not to present its own
income statement for the year. The company reported a profit before impairment losses for the financial
year ended 31 March 2021 of £47,601,000 (2020: £32,554,000) and a profit after impairment losses of
£28,800,000 (2020: £10,873,000)."

The auditor’s remuneration for audit and other services is disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The restructuring costs incurred in the year arose from amendments to the strategic restructuring
programme in relation to the closure of the Manchester and Chichester sites.
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Auditor’s remuneration
The analysis of the auditor's remuneration is as follows:

Year Year‘
ended ended
2021 2020
£000 £000
Fees payable to thecompany’s auditor and theirassociates for the audit
of the company’s financial statements 196 188
Fees payable to thecompany’s auditor and their associates forother
services to thegroup:
-~ Theauditofthecompany’s subsidiaries 156 185
Total audit fees 352 373
Fees payable to thecompany's auditor for otherservices
to the group pursuant to legislation:
— A udit-related assuranceservices 148 151
148 151

Total non-audit fees

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their associates for non-audit services to the company are not required
to be disclosed separately as they are included in the consolidated fees above.

Fees payable to Deloitte LLP and their associates for the respective audits of the financial statements of
Edible Oils Limited and its overseas incorporated subsidiaries, in which the group has a joint venture
interest, for the year ended 31 March 2021 were £45,000 (2020: £43,000) and are not recharged to the

group.

Directors’ remuneration
The remuneration of the directors, who are the key management personnel of the group, is set out below.

The total amounts for directors’ remuneration in accordance with Schedule 5 to the Accounting
Regulations were as follows:

Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
£000 £000
Short-termemployee benefits 1,784 1,482
No. No

Directors to whomretirement benefits are accruing for qualifying

servicesinrespect of defined benefit pensionschemes

The emoluments of the highest paid director were £447,000 (2020: £446,000).

Directors’ remuneration disclosed includes only directors that are paid by the Princes Group and not
remuneration for Directors that are paid directly by Princes ultimate parent Mitsubishi Corporation.
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7. Employee benefit expenses
Employee benefit expenses (including directors) comprise:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 '£7000 £000
W agesand salaries 147,127 140,965 104,085 102,611
Socialsecurity costs 15,822 16,430 9,525 9,351
Otherpensioncosts 9,275 10,072 8,317 8,292
172,224 167,468 121,927 120,254

Included within the Group’s wages and salaries costs are costs in respect of temporary sub-contracted
agency employees of £8,149,000 (2020: £10,525,000).

Included within the Company’s wages and salaries costs are costs in respect of temporary sub-contracted
agency employees of £6,724,000 (2020: £7,013,000).

The average monthly number of employees during the year, including directors, was:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Office management 1,313 1,289 776 773
Manufacturing, warehousingandtransport 5,466 5,586 1,537 1,591
6,779 6,875 2,313 2,364
Temporary sub-contracted agency staff 804 766 425 429
7,583 7,641 2,738 2,793
8. Finance income and costs
Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
£°000 £'000
Financeincome:
Interest ondefined benefit pensionschemes (note31) 1,588 1,341
Financecosts:
Interest onloans and overdrafts : (624) (637)
Interest on lease liabilities : (1,474) (688)
Interest onloans fromgroup undertakings ) (1,697) (2,763)
(3,795) (4,088)
Netfinanceincome and costs . (2,207) (2,747) ‘
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Tax -
a) Analysis of tax expense in the year:

Group

Current tax:
UK corporationtaxon profits for theyear

Adjustmentsinrespect of previous years

Foreign tax
Totalcurrent tax

Deferred tax:
Origination andreversal of timing differences
Effect of changes in taxrates

Adjustmentsinrespect of prior years
Totaldeferred tax (note 25)

Totaltaxexpense fortheyear(note9(b))

b) The charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit in the income statement as follows:

Profit on ordinary activities before tax

TaxattheUK corporationtaxrateof 19% (2020: 19% )

Effects of:

Taxeffectofshareofresults of associates
Taxeffectofincomenottaxableindetermining taxable pro fit
Effect of changeintaxrates

Other differences

Adjustmentstotaxchargeinrespect of previous periods
Taxeffect of utilisationoftaxlossesnot previouslyrecognised
Changeinunrecognised deferréed taxassets

Effect of different rates of subsidiaries operating inother jurisdictions

Taxexpensefoftheyear(note9(a))

Year Year '
ended ended
2021 2020
£000 £000
6,412 3,154
(885) (119)
5,527 3,035
352 374
5,879 3,409
1,556 3,100
- 1.885
1,093 (414)
2,649 4,571
8,528 7,979
Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
£000 £000
45275 30,411
8,602 5,778
(1,311) (1,093)
- (1,300)
- 1,885
(349) 1,040
205 (534)
(1,703) (563)
4,708 5,226
(1,624) (2,460)
8,528 7,979
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Tax (continued) :

The March 2021 Budget announced that the UK corporation tax rate will increase to 25% with effect from
1 April 2023. As this change has not yet been substantively enacted as at 31 March 2021, deferred tax
balances continue to be measured at a rate of 19%. If the amended tax rate had been used, the deferred tax
liability would have been £8,057,000 higher.

“In addition to the amount charged to the income statement, the following amounts relating to tax have

been recognised in other comprehensive income:

Year Year‘
ended ended
2021 2020
£°000 £000
Deferred taxrelating to items that willnot bereclassified to profitorloss 6,074 (1,579)
Taxrelating to items that may bereclassified toprofitorloss 2,832 (2,259)
8,906 . (3,838)
Dividends
Year Year‘
ended ended
2021 2020
£000 £000
Amounts recognisedas distributions to equity holders intheperiod: '
Finaldividend fortheyearended 31 March 2020 0of76.0p (2019:3.0p) per
ordinary share 5318 211
Interimdividend fortheyearended 31 March 2021 of 143.6p (2020:
61.1p) perordinary share 10,050 4,279
15,368 4,491
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Goodwill
Group
Napolina Canning PIA Goodwill
£000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Cost:
Atl April2019,31 March2020 and 31
"March 2021 18,519 25,928 628 45,075
Impairment
Atl Aprii2019,31 March2020 and 31
March 2021 ’ . ) - 628 628
Carrying Values:
Atl April2019,31 March2020 and31 ,
March 2021 18,519 25,928 - 44,447
Company
Napolina Canning Foods Goodwill
£°000 £°000 £°000 £000
Costand carrying values:
At1April2019,31 March2020 and 31
March 2021 18,519 25,928 873 45,320

In accordance with IAS 36, goodwill is not amortised, but is reviewed annually for indications of
impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired.

The recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units and the group of units are determined from value in
use calculations using the most recent 5 year projections for each cash-generating unit. The group
prepares cash flow forecasts derived from the most recent financial budgets approved by management for
the next five years and extrapolates cash flows for the following five/ten years based on estimated growth
rates that do not exceed the average long-term growth rate for the relevant markets.

There are a number of assumptions within each forecast and these have been revised in the year in light of
the current economic environment which has resulted in continued estimates about the future.
Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the cash-generating units and the group of units. The growth
rates are based on industry growth forecasts, specific to each cash-generating unit. Changes in selling
prices and direct costs are based on past practices and expectations of future changes in the market. The
pre tax rate used to discount the forecast cash flows ranges from 8.06% - 9.08% (2020: 8.44% — 8.94%).

Some of the Napolina branded products are manufactured at PIA (Princes Industrie Alimentari’s Foggia
site). In understanding the underlying asset base of the PIA cash generating unit for the purpose of
impairment test management, £7,407,000 of Napolina goodwill and £2,917,000 of the other intangible
assets (Brand) have been included. .

~ The group has conducted various sensitivity analyses on the impairment test of each cash-generating unit,

see note 1.4. The directors have considered reasonably possible changes across all significant assumptions
and none are present that would give rise to an indicator of impairment in the current year.

The Directors have considered the impact of COVID-19 on forecasts and have found the impact to be
positive across all CGU’s. This is considered in detail in the future developments section of the strategic
report.
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Other intangible assets

Group

Brands Licences Total

£'000 £'000 £°000

Cost:
Atl April20i9,31 March2020and31 March2021 : 18,848 14,610 ' 33,458
Amortisation:
Balanceat 31 March2019 . - 7,532 7,532
Chargefortheyear - 964 964
Balanceat 31 March 2020 - 8,496 8,496
Charge fortheyear - 964 964
Balanceat 31 March 2021 - 9,460 9,460
Carrying values:
Balanceat 31 March 2021 18,848 5,150 23,998
'BalanceatBI March 2020 18,848 6,114 24,962
Balanceat 31 March 2019 18,848 7,078 25,926

Licences are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which is on average 15 years. Amortisation is
charge to the income statement, within administrative expenses.

Brands are not amortised but are tested annually by an estimation of the value in use of the cash
generating units to determine whether there is any indication the brands have suffered an impairment loss.
Full details of the impairment review process are included in note 11.

The cash generating units are as follows:

Group
Canning Napolina Total
£°000 £°000 £°000
Costand carrying value:
At1April2019,31 March2020and 31 March2021 11,555 7,293 18,848
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Other intangible assets (continued)

' Company

Cost:

Atl April2019,31 March2020 and 31 March 2021

Amortisation:
Balanceat 31 March 2019
Chargefortheyear

Balanceat 31 March 2020
Chargefortheyear

Balanceat 31 March 2021

Carrying values:

Balanceat 31 March 2021
Balanceat 31 March 2020

Balanceat 31 March 2019

Brands Licences Total
£°'000 £°000 £'000
18,848 14,610 33,458
- 7,532 7,532
- 964 964
- 8,496 8,496
- 964 964
. 9,460 9,460
18,848 5,150 23,998
18,848 6,114 24,962
18,848 7,078 25,926

Licences are amortised over their estimated useful lives, which is on average 15 years. Amortisation is

charge to the income statement, within administrative expenses.

Brands are not amortised but are tested annually by an estimation of the value in use of the cash
generating units to determine whether there is any indication the brands have suffered an impairment loss.
Full detaiis of the impairment review process are included in note 11.

The cash generating units are as follows:

Costand carrying value:

AtlAprit2019,31 March2020and 31 March2021

Canning

£°000

11,555

Napolina
£°000

7,293

Total'
£'000

18,848 .
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Property, plant and equipment

Group Assetsin Plant,

thecourseof Landand machinery &

construction buildings equipment Vehicles Total
£000 £°000 £'000 £°000 £°000

Cost: )
At 1April 2019 46,084 187,231 418,888 2,100 654,303
Additions 86,420 1,334 9,437 - 97,191
Transfers . (28,374) 5,990 22,252 132 -
Disposals . - (1,721) (10,794) (218) (12,733)
Transferred to HFS (Note 20) - (14,877) (11,523) - (26,400)
Exchangedifferences 112 2,250 4,122 67 6,551
At31March2020 104,242 180,207 432,382 2,081 718,912
Additions 82,534 246 7,141 - 89,921
Transfers (63,686) 9,078 54,033 575 -
Disposals - (19,040) (56,599) (173) (75,812)
Transferred to HFS (Note 20) - - (560) - (560)
Exchange differences (184) (3,116) (5.920) (88) (9,308)
At31March2021 122,906 167,375 430,477 2,395 723,153

Accumulated depreciation and impairment:

At 1April 2019 - 51,922 243,722 1,716 297,360
Charge for the year - 5,366 24,336 167 29,869
Impairment reversal - - (3,797) - (3,797)'
Disposals - (1,447) (9,183) (218) (10,848)
Transferred to HFS (Note 20) - (7,711) (10,446) - (18,157)
Exchangedifferences - 634 2,189 56 2,879
At31 March2020 - 48,764 246,821 1,721 297,306
Charge forthe year - 5,128 26,129 277 31,534
Disposals . - (5,269) (41,700) (167) (47,136)
Transferred to HFS (Note 20) - - (357) - (357) V
Exchange differences - (951) (3,241) (74) (4,266)
At31 March2021 - 47,672 227,652 1,757 277,081

Carrying values:

At31 March2021 . 122,906 119,703 202,825 638 446,072
At31 March 2020 104,242 131,443 185,561 360 421,606
At 1April2019 46,084 135,309 175,166 384 356,943

Impairment losses recognised in the year

In addition to the impairment reviews completed on cash-generating units with goodwill and other
intangible assets (see note 11), management have considered whether there are any other indicators of
impairment are present. During the year, as the result of a strategic review of a manufacturing plant, the
group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of that manufacturing plant and the related
equipment. No impairments were identified in the year (2020: Nil)

‘The impairment reversal in the prior year relates to a reversal of a previous year impairment following a

reassessment of assumptions surrounding the restructuring programme based upon the latest information.
Assets pledged as security

There is a fixed and floating charge over certain assets of the group, including property, plant and
equipment.
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Company

Cost:
AtlApril2019
A dditions

Transfer fromassetsunderconstruction

Disposals
Transferred to HFS (Note 20)

At31 March 2020
A dditions

Transfer fromassetsunderconstruction

Disposals
Transferred to HFS (Note 20)

At31 March 2021

Accumulated depreciation:
At1April2019

Charge fortheyear
Impairment reversal
Disposals

Transferred to HFS (Note 20)

At31 March2020

Charge for theyear
Disposals

Transferred to HFS (Note 20)

At31 March202t

Carrying values:
At31 March 2021

At3]1 March2020

At 1A pril2019

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Assets in

thecourseof

Plant,

Landand machinery &

construction buildings equipment Total .
£°'000 £°000 £°000 £000
42,906 106,776 277,736 427,418
85,454 - - 85,454
(28,256) 5,944 22,312 -
- (1,705) (8,943) (10,648)
- (14,877) (11,523) . (26,400)
100,104 96,138 279,582 . 475,824
81,642 - 534 82,176
(63,686) 8,688 54,998 -
- (19,037) (54,800) (73,837)
- - (560) (560)
118,060 85,789 279,754 483,603
- 26,459 162,931 189,390
- 3,017 16,224 19,241
N - (3,797) (3,797)
- (1,434) (7,446) (8,880)
- (7,711) (10,446) (18,157)
- 20,331 157,466 177,797
- 2,863 17,982 20,845
- (5,267) (39,966) (45,233)
. . (357) (357)
- 17,927 135,125 153,052
118,060 67,862 144,629 330,551
100,104 75,807 122,116 298,027
42,906 80,317 114,805 238,028

In the opinion of the directors, the open market value of the group's and company’ interest in land and
buildings is not materially different to the book value.

Impairment losses recognised in the year

In addition to the impairment reviews completed on cash-generating units with goodwill and other
intangible assets (see note 11), management have. considered whether there are any other indicators of
impairment are present. During the year, as the result of a strategic review of a manufacturing plant, the
group carried out a review of the recoverable amount of that manufacturing plant and the related

equipment. No impairments were identified in the year (2020: Nil).

The impairment reversal in the prior year relates to a reversal of a previous year impairment following a
reassessment of assumptions surrounding the restructuring programme based upon the latest information.
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Prdperty, plant and equipment (continued)

~ Details of split between freehold and long leasehold property are as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £7000 £°000 £000
Freehold " 81,368 92,088 30,933 37,938
Longleasehold . 38,335 39,355 36,929 37,869
119,703 131,443 67,862 75,807
Investment property
Company Investment
property
£°000
Cost:
At1lApril 2019 7,134
A dditions 97
Disposals -
" At31 March2020 7,231
A'dditions . 6
Disposals ' (1)
At31l March2021 7,236
Amortisation: . R
At 1April2019 3,125
Chargefortheyear 217
Disposals L -
At31 March2020 : 3,342
Charge for theyear 194
At 31 March2021 - : 3,536
Carrying values:
At3l March2021 ’ 3,700
At31 March2020 3,889
At1April2019 4,009

In the opinion of the directors the fair value of the company’s investment property at 31 March 2021 is not
materially different to the book value. This has been arrived at on the basis of a valuation on 17 March
2015 by Lambert Smith Hampton, an independent valuer with experience in the location and class of
investment property being valued. The valuation conforms to International Valuation Standards. The
method of determining fair value was derived using recent comparable market transaction on arms length
terms at the time of the valuation and based on normal assumptions applied in carrying out similar
valuation. There are no restrictions on the realisability of investment property.

The property rental income earned by the company from its investment property, which is leased out
under an operating lease, amounted to 2021: £nil (2020: £nil). See note 28.
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Subsidiaries

The subsidiary undertakings of Princes Limited, all of which have been included in these consolidated

financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion
ofownership

interests and

Placeof business and Ordinary votingrights
Subsidiaryundertakings registeredoffice holding held Natureofbusiness
Princes Tuna (M auritius) POBox 131, New Trunk Road, Direct 51% Processing &
Limited Riche Terre, PortLouis, ’ packaging
Republic of Mauritius oftunafish
Indico Canning Limited M arine Road, PortLouis, Indirect 68% Processing &
Republicof Mauritius packaging
Princes Foods BV Boompjes40, PO Box 19157, Direct 100% Distribution of
3001 BD, Rotterdam, Holland ) food products
Princes Industrie A limentari Srl SrlLocalitalncoronata Direct 100% Productionof
ZonaASI71122 ambient tomato
Foggia (FG), Italy and pulse
W estYorkshire Industrial RoyalLiver Building, Direct 56% Estate
Estates (M anagement)Limited Pier Head, management
Liverpool,
. L3 INX,
-England & W ales
Princes Holding Rotterdam BV Boompjes 40, PO Box 19157, Direct 100% Trademark
3001 BD, Rotterdam, Holland Holding
Abbey Foods (Liverpool) Limited England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant
Barraclough (1996) Limited England & W ales* Direct 100% . Dormant
BetaFoods Limited: England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant
CShippam Limited England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant
CimaFoods Limited England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant
Gee Bee Limited England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant
Jack L. Israel Limited England & W ales* Indirect 100% Dormant
Leon Frenkel Limited England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant
NapolipaLimited England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant
Princes Foods (1989) Limited England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant
Princes Foods Limited England & W ales * Indirect 100% Dormant
Princes Soft Drinks Limited England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant
Crosse & Blackwell Ltd England & W ales* Indirect 100% Dormant
(previously Eden Valley W ater
Limited)
WellWell Well (UK)Limited England & W ales* Direct 100% Dormant

*The dormant subsidiaries are all registered at Royal Liver Building, Pier Head, Liverpool, L3 1NX.

During the year Princes Limited acquired Princes Holding Rotterdam BV from Mitsubishi Corporation.
The Principle activity of Princes Holding Rotterdam BV is holding the trademarks to the Princes Brands.
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Subsidiaries (continued)
Company

Cost: .
At1l April2020
A dditions

At31 March2021
Provisions forimpairment

At1April 2020

Impairment

At31 March2021
Carrying values:
At3]l March2021

At31 March2020

Subsidiary
Underlaitlngs
£°000

214,590
30,850

245,440

(117,455)
(18,801)

(136,256)

109,184

97,135

Additions relate to the recapitalisation of Princes Italian subsidiary Princes Industrie Alimentari SRL.

At a company level, management have reviewed the carrying value of investments. The impairment
charge recognised in the year ensures that the carrying value of investments in subsidiary undertakings
does not exceed the expected value of each subsidiary, based on discounted cash flow forecasts. All
amounts impaired in the year relate to Princes Italian subsidiary Princes Industrie Alimentari SRL, this
impairment was arrived at by comparing the recoverable amount for the PIA CGU against the investment

amount.

The reconciliation of non-controlling interests in note 33 includes an analysis of the profit or loss
allocated to non-controlling interests of each subsidiary where the non-controlling interest is material to

the group.-

Interests in associates

Details of the group’s associate at the end of the reporting perio'd are as follows:

Placeof business and Ordinary

Nameofassociate registeredoffice holding

Proportionof
ownership
interests and

voting rights

held Narureofbusiness‘
'MaripeBiotechnology . IBL House, Indirect 339% Processing of fish meal
Products Limited Caudan, P

Port Louis,

Republic of M auritius

The associate is accounted for using the equity method in these consolidated financial statements as set
out in the group accounting policies in note 1.3. Shareholding relates to Ordinary shares.

The summarised financial information represents amounts in accordance with IFRSs, adjusted by the

group for equity accounting purposes.
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Interests in associates (continued)

Year Year
ended ended
2021 2020
£'000 £000
TheGroupsshareofproflt fromcontinuing operatlons 294 845 '
Exchange dlfferences (680) (586)
The Group's shareoftotalcomprehensiveincome (386) 259
Aggregatecarryingamount of the Group's interests inassociates 8,636 9,022

Investment in joint venture

The group has a 50% (2020: 50%) interest in a joint venture, Edible Oils Limited. All of Princes Limited’s
shareholding relates to ordinary shares. The principal activity of Edible Oils Limited is the processing of
edible oils and the company is incorporated in England and Wales, with a registered office at Royal Liver
Building, Pier Head, Liverpool, L3 INX.

The contractual arrangement provides the group with only the rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement, with the rights to the assets and obligation for liabilities of the joint arrangement resting
primarily with Edible Oils Limited. Under IFRS 11 this joint arrangement is classified as a joint venture
and has been included in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method.

Sdmmarised statementof financial position: .

2021 2020

£'000 £°000
Current assets 56,105 65,231
Non-current assets 50,917 42,055
Current liabilities (29,903) (34,370)
Non-current liabilitie s ’ (3,231) (3,117)
Netassets (100%) 73,888 69,799
Group shareofnet assets (50%) 36,944 34,900
Summarisedincome statement and statement of comprehensive income:

2021 2020

£°000 £°000
Revenues 255,149 218,706
Profit for the year (continuing operations) 14,089 10,640
Totalcomprehensiveincome for theyear (continuing operations) 14,087 10,637
Groupshareoftotalcomprehensiveincome (50%) 7,044 5,319

Dividends received by group from joint venture 5,000 2,500

The joint venture had no other contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
same), except as disclosed in note 29. Edible Qils Limited cannot distribute its profits without the consent
from the two venture partners.
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Inventories
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 . £°000 £'000 £000
Raw materials and consumables 77,712 84,317 35,817 38,272
. Finishedgoodsandgoods forresale 222,921 210,286 134,583 113,637
300,633 294,603 170,400 151,909

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year in respect of continuing operations was

£1,148,448,000 (2020: £1,127,162,000).

Inventories of £nil (2020: £nil) are expected to be recovered after more than twelve months.

Inventories with a carrying amount of £48,168,000 (2020: £48,428,000) have been pledged with a fixed
floating charge over the assets of the respective subsidiary entity for certain of the group} bank

overdrafts.

Trade and other receivables '

Non-currentassets Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Amountsowedbysubsidiary undertakings - - 42,755 44,612
Currentassets 2021 2020 2021 2020
’ £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Tradereceivables 168,608 195,476 123,970 142,139
Amountsowedby parent undertakings 2,473 1,588 29 -
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings - - 94,451 114,514
Amounts owed by related parties (note29) 3,837 7,174 3,470 6,690
Otherreceivables . 15,534 12,790 - 11,843 7,282
Prepayments ’ 9,975 10,519 9,580 10,178
200,427 227,547 243,343 280,803
Ageingofpastduebutnotimpaired receivables:
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £°000 £°000 £°000
31-60 days 5,975 9,281 4,677 - 5,272
61-90 days 365 2,280 283 878
91-120 days 448 1,443 386 1,408
Total 6,788 13,004 5,346 7,558
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Trade and other receivables (continued)

Trade receivables

The credit risk associated with receivables for the group are as per the directors’ report, page 7, with credit
risk management as per note 36. Group policies in managing credit risk are designed to reduce exposure
to risks and minimise any losses and include dealing with creditworthy counterparties and the use of credit
ratings provided by rating agencies which are applied to counterparties.

All intergroup trade payables and receivables are repayable on demand and are interest free.

The group’s largest 10 customers accounted for 59% of trade receivables as at 31 March 2021 (2020:
61%).

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade and other receivables is approximately equal to

-their fair value.

Assets Held for Sale

Group Comﬁany
2021 2020 2021 2020
€000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Non-currentassetsHeld for Sale 2,319 8,143 2,319 8,143

During the year the sale of the Chichester site which sat in assets held for sale completed. The remaining
balance relates to the Manchester site which has a forecasted completion date of July 2021.

Trade and other payables

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

£°000 £°000 £°000 £000
Tradepayables 90,130 91,076 42,680 42,873
Other payables . 4,565 4,065 2,467 2,800
Othertaxes and social security costs . 2,650 2,531 2,465 2,417
Accruals 59,448 59,124 48,166 47,633
A mounts dueto parent undertakings - - ) 6 1,780 4,623
Amountsduetosubsidiary undertakings - - 28,969 26,915
A mountsduetoothergroupundertakings 9,711 7,931 7,931 7,931
A mountsduetorelated parties (note 29) 29,585 35,160 33,068 38,276
Totaltradeand other pa‘yables 196,089 199,893 167,526 . 173,468

Trade creditors and accruals principally compvrise amounts outstanding for trade purchases and ongoing
costs. :

The directors consider that the carrying amount of trade payables approximates to their fair value.
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Borrowings

Unsecured borrowing at amortised cost
Bank(;verdrafts .

Loans fromsubsidiary undertakings

A mounts dueto parent undertakings and

othergroup companies

Totalunsecured borrowings

Secured borrowing at amortised cost

Bank loans

Total borrowings
Amountdueforsettlement within 12 months

Amountdueforsettlement after 12 months

Analysis of borrowings by currency:

At31 March 2021
Bank overdrafts
Bank loans
A mountsdueto parent undertakings and

other groupcompanies 328,500

At31 March 2020
Bank overdrafts
Bank loans
A mountsdueto parent undertakings and

other groupcompanies 308,968

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £°000 £°000 £000
49,740 141,357 37,711 111,797
- - 51,109 51,109
462,162 372,940 462,162 372,940
511,902 514,297 550,982 535,846
14,963 17,748 . B
526,865 532,045 550,982 535,846
379,869 360,818 362,576 325,765
146,996 171,227 188,406 210,081
Group
Sterling Euros Other* Total
£°000 £000 £°000 £000
33,770 12,029 3,941 49,740
. 14,963 - 14,963
133,662 N 462,162
362,270 160,654 3,941 526,865
N
89,623 46,856 4,878 141,357
- 17,748 - 17,748
63,972 - 372,940
128,576 4,878 532,045

398,591

* Other currencies comprise Polish Zloty and US Dollar balances.
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Borrowings (continued)

Company
Sterling Euros Other* Total ‘
£°000 £000 £000 £000
At31 March 2021
Bank overdrafts 33,770 - 3,941 37,711
Loans fromsubsidiary undertakings 51,109 - - 51,109
Amountsdueto parentundertakings and
other group companies 328,500 133,662 : - 462,162
413,379 133,662 3,941 550,982
At31 March2020
Bank overdrafts 106,919 P 4,878 111,797
Loans fromsubsidiary undertakings 51,109 - - 51,109
Amountsdueto parentundertakings and
other group companies 308,968 63,972 - 372,940
466,996 63,972 4,878 535,846

* Other currencies comprise Polish Zloty and US Dollar balances.
The other principal features of the group’s borrowings are as follows:
Bank borrowings are made against short — term or overdraft facilities, all at commercial rates of interest.

Bank overdrafts are repayable on demand. Overdrafts of £nil (2020: £nil) have been secured with a fixed
floating charge over the assets of the respective subsidiary entity.

Included in amounts owed by the group and company to parent undertakings and other group companies
is £324,865,000 (2020: £213,968,000) relating to short — term borrowings and £76,000,000
(2020: £95,000,000) repayable by annual instalments from August 2022 — August 2027 on which interest
is based on 3 months LIBOR and £61,297,000 (2020: £63,972,000) repayable by 2 May 2022 on which
interest is based on 3 months Euribor.

At the year end, the group’ aggregate borrowing facilities total £673,160,000 (2020: £582,670 000), of
which £151,937,000 is available for draw down (2020: £52,814,000).

All borrowings due to parent and other group companies are secured under a guarantee from Mitsubishi
Corporation.
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Borrowings (continued)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

Group ) . NoneCashChanges
Financing
2020 Cash Flows (i) New Foreign 2021
£'000 Leases Exchange Other (ii) £'000
Bank loans 17,748 ° (2,405) (380) 14,963
Amountsduetoparentundertakingsa 372.940 94,116 (4,894) 462.162
nd other group companies
Lease Liabilities (Note 28) 85,095 (11,945) 764 (1,015) (1,234) 71,665
Total 475,783 548,790
—_— _—
i ) NoneCashChanges
Financing
2019 Cash Flows (i) New Foreign 2020
£°000 Leases Exchange Other (ii) £'000
Bank loans 35,565 (15,948) (1,869) 17,748
Amountsduetoparentundertakings 332,511 37,045 3,384 372,940
and other group companies .
Lease Liabilities (Note 28) - (8,935) 93,547 (120) 603 85,095
Total 368,076 475,783
Company . ) NoneCash Changes
Financing
2020 Cash Flows (i) New Foreign 2021
£'000 Leases Exchange Other (ii) £'000
A tsduet tundertaki
mountscuetoparent undertakingsa 372,940 94,116 (4,894) 462,162
nd other group companies !
Lease Liabilities (Note 28) 65,008 (7,734) 615 (1) (309) 57,579
Total 437,948 519,741
. . NoneCashChanges
Financing
2019 Cash Flows (i) New Foreign 2020
£°000 Leases Exchange Other (ii) £'000
Amountsduetoparent dertakin
unts duetoparent un MESA 333511 37,045 3,384 372,940,
nd other group companies
Lease Liabilities (Note 28) - (5,188) 69,604 2 590 65,008
Total 332,511 437,948
@) The cash flows make up the net amount of proceeds from borrowings and repayments of
borrowings in the statement of cash flows.
(ii) Other changes include interest accruals and payments, Lease Modifications and Lease
Terminations
Capital commitments
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £°000 £000
A mountscontracted but not provided for 51,046 49,831 51,046 43,501

All capital commitments relate to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment.
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24. Derivative financial instruments

. Current Non-current
. Group 2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Derivative financial assets
Derivatives that aredesignatedandeffective
as hedging instruments carried at fair value:
-Forward foreign currency contracts : 1,052 8,387 2 20
Total derivative financial assets 1,052 8,387 2 20
Derivativefinancial liabilities
Derivatives that aredesignatedand effective
as hedging instruments carried at fair value:
-Forward foreign currency contracts (9,507) (2,422) (82) 17)
Total derivative financial liabilities (9,507) (2,422) (82) (17)
Carrent Non-current
Company 2021 2020 2021 2020
’ £000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Derivative financial assets
Derivatives that aredesignated and effective
as hedginginstruments carriedat fair value:
-Forward foreigncurrency contracts 647 7,354 2 13
L Total derivative financial assets : 647 7,354 2 13
Derivative financial liabilities
Derivatives that aredesignatedand effective
as hedging instruments carriedat fair value:
-Forward foreign currency contracts (8,604) (1,684) (82) (5)
Total derivative financial liabilities (8,604) (1,684) (82) (5)

Forward foreign currency contracts are valued using quoted forward exchange rates and yield curves
derived from quoted interest rates matching maturities of the contracts.

Foreign exchange risk arises when group enter into transactions denominated in a currency other than
their functional currency. To cover this risk treasury will enter into a matching forward foreign exchange
contract with a reputable bank.

Fusther details of derivative financial instruments are provided in note 36.
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Deferred tax
The following are the major deferred tax liabilities and assets recognised by the group and movements
thereon during the current and prior reporting period.

Group Accelerated Revaluation Retirement
tax of financial = benefit
depreciation assets obligations Total ‘
£'000 £°000 L £'000 £000
AtlApril2019 12,595 ] ‘(1,086) 10,359 21,868
(Credit)/chargetoprofitorloss 2,789 311 3,100
Chargetoothercomprehensiveincome ' 2,220 . l,579A 3,799
Exchange differences 39 : 39
Adjustmentsinrespectofprevious years (414) (414)

Effectofchangein taxrate:

-Income statement 1,276 - 609 1,885
-Othercomprehensiveincome - - 609 609
At31 March 2020 R 16,285 1,134 13,467 30,886
(Credit)/chargeto profitorloss 1,242 314 1,556
Chargetoothercomprehensiveexpense (2,756) (6,074) (8,830)
Exchange differences (76) (76)
Adjustmentsinrespectofprevious years 1,093 1,093 )
At31 March 2021 - 18,544 (1,622) 7,707 ' 24,629
Company Accelerated Revaluation Retirement
tax of financial benefit -
depreciation assets . obligations Total

£°000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 1April 2019 12,035 (1,170) 10,346 21,211
Chargetoprofit orloss 2,256 - 311 2,567
Chargetoothercomprehensiveincome - - 2,249 1,605 3,854
Effect of changein taxrate:
-Incomestatement 1,276 ’ - . 609 1,885
-Othercomprehensive income - - 609 609
At31 March 2020 15,567 B 1,079 13,480 30,126
Chargetoprofit orloss 3,760 - 313 4,073
Chargetoothercomprehensiveexpense L (2,606) (5,987) (8,593)
At31 March 2021 . 19,327 (1,527) 7,806 25,606
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Deferred tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the group has a legally enforceable right to do so. The
following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting purposes:

Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020

2 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
Deferred tax asset 1,622 - 1,527 -
Deferred tax liability (26,251) (30,886) (27,133) (30,126)
Totaldeferred tax liability . (24,629) (30,886) (25,606) (30,126)

At the balance sheet date, the group has unused tax losses of £111,964,000 (2020: £110,077,000)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
losses as it is not considered probable that there will be future taxable profits available. All losses may be
carried forward indefinitely )

The deferred tax asset relates to the derivatives position at year end thus is deemed recoverable: -

Provisions
Groupandcompany Restructuring Leasehold Litigation
provision - dilapidations Provision Total
£°000 £'000 £°'000 £'000 ’
Atl April2020 10,828 704 © 5,238 16,769
Additional provisionintheyear 893 67 - 960
Amounts utilised intheyear (3,510) - (5,238) (8,748)
At31 March 2021 8,211 771 - 8,982
Current 8,211 - - 8,211
Non-current - ’ 771 - 771
8,211 771 - 8,982

Leasehold dilapidations relate to the estimated cost of returning a leasehold property to its original state at
the end of the lease in accordance with the lease terms. The cost is recognised as depreciation of leasehold
improvements over the remaining term of the lease. The main uncertainty relates to estimating the cost
that will be incurred at the end of the lease. The restructuring provision represents management’s best
estimate of the costs arising from the announcement of a strategic restructuring programmes. The main
uncertainty relates to the estimation of the costs that will be incurred during the programmes and the
timing of their conclusions. The litigation provision represents management’s best estimates of the costs
arising for the settlement of ongoing legal cases at year end. The main uncertainty relates to the estimation
of the costs that will be settled for the ongoing cases and the timing of their conclusions.

Share capital
2021 2020
£000 £000
Authorised ’
29,600,000 ordinary sharesof £1 each 29,600 29,600
Issuedand fullypaid
7,000,000 ordinary sharesof £1 each 7,000 7,000

The company has one class of ordinary shares which carry no right to fixed income.
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Leases

Right of use assets
Group

Cost:

Atl1April2019

CostOn Transition To IFRS16
Additionsand remeasurements

Disposals

At31 March 2020

Additions and remeasurements
Transfers

Disposals

Exchangedifferences

At31 March2021

Accumulated depreciation:
AtlApril 2019
Charge for theyear

Disposals

At31 March 2020
Charge fortheyear
Disposals

Exchange differences’

At31 March 2021

Carrying values:

At31 March 2021

At31l March2020

Plan:,

Land and machinery &

buildings equipment Vehicles Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
15,807 7,000 3,801 26,608
46,244 19,598 482 66,324
(4) (469) (121) (593)
62,047 26,130 4,162 92,339
389 1,302 392 2,083
(172) (1,524) (871) (2,567)
(2,419) (582) (44) (3,045)
59,845 25,326 3,639 88,810
2,086 5,148 1,457 8,692
(4) (480) (129) 612)
2,083 4,669 1,328 8,080
4,696 5,398 1,199 11,293
(172) (1,333) (537) (2,042)
(54) (98) (11) (163)
6,553 8,636 1,979 17,168
53,292 16,690 1,660 71,642
59,964 21,461 2,834 84,259
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Leases (Continued)

Company

Cost:

AtlApril2019
CostOnTransition ToIFRS16
A dditionsandremeasurements

Disposals

At31 March 2020
A dditionsand remeasurements

Disposals

At31 March 2021

Accumulated depreciation:
AtlApril2019

Charge fortheyear’
Disposals

At31 March 2020

Charge fortheyear
Disposals

At31 March 2021

Carrying values:
At31 March 2021

At31 March 2020

Lease Liabilities

Plant,

Landand machinery &

Lease liabilities are recognised in the balance sheet as follows:

CurrentLiabilities

Non-Current giabilities

buildings equipment Vehicles Total
£000 £000 £000 £°000
4,556 3,729 3,069 11,354
46,118 11,342 162 57,622
- (460) (121) (581)
50,674 14,611 3,110 68,395
220 322 271 813
(138) (1,045) (841) (2,024)
50,756 13,888 2,540 67,184
801 2,771 1,174 4,746
- (460) (121) (581)
801 2,311 1,053 4,165
3,973 2,218 927 7,118
(138) (853) (509) (1,500)
4,637 3,675 1,471 9,783
46,119 10,213 1,069 57,401
49,873 12,301 2,057 64,230
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£000 £000 £°000 £000
11,630 12,968 6,927 7,549
60,035 72,127 50,652 57,459
71,665 85,095 57,579 65,008
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Leases (antinued)

Amounts recognised in profit and loss

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
£'000 £'000 £°000 £°000
Depreciationexpenseonrightof-use assets 11,293 8,692 7,118 4,746
Interestexpenseonlease liabilities - 1,474 688 ‘1,221 354
12,767 9,380 8,339 5,100

Lease payments include rentals payable by the group for certain of its office properties, plant and
equipment and vehicles. The lease terms vary in duration from 1 to 15 years and are all priced at
prevailing market rates.

In determining the lease term, all facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive to exercise an
extension option, or not exercise termination option, are considered. Extension .options (or periods after
termination options) are only included in the lease term if the lease is reasonably certain to be extended
(or terminated).

The group had no expenses relates to low-value or short term leases included in the profit and loss for the
year ending 31st March 2021.

The group does not have any sub-lease agreements, variable lease payment terms, committed but not yet

commenced leases that have not been reflected in lease liabilities or short term lease commitments at 31
March 2021.

See note 36 for a maturity analysis of lease liabilities.
The total cash outflow for leases in the period was £13,419,000 (2020: £9,623,000)

Operating leases - lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was £nil (2020: £nil). The property held is leased to Edible
Oils Limited, a joint venture of the group which is committed for the next 37 years. The lessee paid a
premium at the start of the lease in March 2006 which is being amortised over the length of the lease of 51
years which was £96,000 during the year (2020: £96,000). The lessee does not have an option to purchase
the property at the expiry of the lease period.

The minimum rent receivables under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

2021 2020

£°000 £000

Notlaterthanoneyear 96 96 4
Inthesecond to fifth yearsinclusive 384 384
A fter fiveyears ‘ 2,976 3,072

. 3,456 3,552
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Related party transactions

Balances and transactions between the company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been
eliminated on consolidation and are not disclosed in the group note. During the year, group companies
entered into the following transactions with related parties and other associated companies:

Saleof goods and

Group provisionof services Purchaseof goods
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 '£’000 £f000-'

Edible Oils Limited ' 4,692 4,341 255,149 218,691 ’

M arine Biotechnology Products Limited 1,866 ' 2,119 - -

Amounts owed by related Amounts owed to related
parties parties

2021 2020 2021 2020

£000 £°000 £000 £000

Edible Oils Limited 3,576 6,754 29,585 35,160

M arine Biotechnology Products Limited 261 420 - -
3,837 7,174 29,585 35,160

During the year, the company entered into the following transactions with related parties and other
associated companies: '

Saleof goods and

Company . provisionofservices Purchaseof goods
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 £°000 £'000 '

Edible Oils Limited 3,166 3,036 184,785 161,876

Princes Tuna (M auritius) Limited 42,219 56,314 . - -

Amounts owed by related Amounts owed to related
parties parties
2021 : 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £°000 - £000 £000

Edible Oils Limited 3,465 . 6,663 22,118 30,036

Princes Tuna (M auritius) Limited 5 - 27 10,950 8,240
3,470 6,690 33,068 38,276

All transactions were in the normal course of business and the prices for each individual purchase and sale
were at arm’s length prices. No interest accrues on trading balances.

The amounts outstanding are unsecured and will be settled in cash. No guarantees have been given or
received. No provisions have been made for doubtful debts in respect of the amounts owed by related
parties.

Contingent liabilities
The group and company have issued general indemnities in the normal course of business; however, none
are considered material for disclosure in the financial statements (2020: same).
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Retirement benefit schemes

Defined benefit plans

The group operates a number of defined benefit pension schemes, which are funded by the payment of
contributions to independently administered trust funds. The assets of these schemes are‘held separately
from those of the group. The trustees of the pension funds are required by law to act in the interest of the

funds and of all relevant stakeholders in the schemes. The trustees of the funds are responsible for the

investment policy with regards to the assets of the funds. The pension cost figures included in the

financial statements relating to the pension schemes are stated in accordance with IAS 19 — Employee

Benefits. The schemes provide final salary based benefits to the members.

The principal pension schemes operated by the group are the Princes Pension Schemes, which are
operated by the company. Princes Tuna (Mauritius) Limited, a subsidiary undertaking, also operates a
defined benefit scheme and retirement gratuities scheme which has an overall deficit of £4,548,000 (2020:
£3,265,000) and is therefore considered by the directors to be insignificant compared to the overall surplus
within the group.

The pension costs are determined with the advice of independent qualified actuaries on the basis of
triennial valuations using the attained age method.

The schemes expose the group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk
and salary risk. These risks, over time, will affect the schemes’ total cost and will depend on a number of
factors, including the amount of benefits the scheme pays, the number of people paid benefits, the period
of time over which benefits are paid, plan expenses and the amount earned on any assets invested to pay
benefits. These amounts and other variables are uncertain and unknowable at the valuation date and
therefore summary information, estimates, or simplifications of estimates are used to carry out valuation.

The valuation used for IAS 19 purposes has been based on the most recent actuarial valuations and
updated by the scheme actuaries to take account of the requirements of IAS 19 in order to assess the
liabilities of the schemes at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020. Scheme assets are stated at their market
values at the respective balance sheet dates.

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial valuations were as follows:

Group ’ ) A 2021 2020
Keyassuniptions: ‘
Discount rate 2.58% 3.28%
Expected rate salary increase 2.25% 2.50%
Averagelongevity at retirement age for pensioners retiring today (years)*

-Male ‘ 16.6 218
-Female - 18.7 24.7
Averagelongevity at retirement age for pensioners retiring in 20 years (years)* 4
-Male 17.5 227
-Female 19.7 25.6
Expected rateofincreasein pensions in payment 1.56% . 1.16%
Expectedrateofincreasein deferred pensions 1.50% 0.70%
Inflation assumption - RPI 3.00% 1.95%

*Longevity assumptions:

Investigations have been carried out within the past three years into the mortality experience of the
group’s defined benefit schemes. These investigations concluded that the current mortality assumptions
include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The assumed life expectations on
retirement at age 65, using weighted average life expectancy for mortality tables, are disclosed above.
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Retirement benefit schemes (continued) ,
Amounts recognised in income in respect of these defined benefit schemes are as follows:

Group . 2021 2020
£'000 £'000
Current servicecost (939) (819) A
Netinterest income 1,588 1,341
Totalcostsrecognised in theincome statement 649 522

The current service costs have been included in the income statement as administrative expenses. The net
interest income has been included within net finance costs (see note 8). ‘

Amounts recognised in the statement of comprehensive income are as follows:

2021 2020

£000 £000
Thereturnonplanassets ’ 17,325 (1,474)
Changes inassumptions underlyingthepresent valueofscheme liabilities (50,629) 9,265
Remeasurement ofthenet defined benefit asset . (33,304) 7,791

The amount included in the consolidated statement of financial position arising from the group3
obligations in respect of the defined benefit retirement benefit schemes is as follows:

2021 2020
£°000 £°000
Present valueofdefined benefit obligations (238,135) (195,372)
Fair valueofplanassets ’ 274,672 263,054
Netassetarising fromthedefinedbenefitobligation 36,537 67,682
2021 2020
£°000 £°000
Retirement benefit surplus 41,085 70,947
Retirement benefit obligations (4,548) (3,265)
Net asset arising from thedefined benefit obligation 36,537 67,682

The difference between the Princes Limited company only net pension asset of £41,085,000 (2020:
£70,947,000) and the Princes Limited group net pension asset of £36,537,000 (2020: £67,682,000) relates
to the deficit on the Princes Tuna (Mauritius) Limited pension and retirement gratuities schemes. The
directors do not consider it necessary to include the full disclosure for the Princes Limited company only
position as the differences between the company and group balances are not significant.

The valuation at 31 March 2021 showed an decrease in the net surplus for the Princes Pension Schemes
from £67,682,000 to £36,537,000. Normal employer contributions decreased from £1,582,000 to
£1,063,000. The group expects to contribute £648,000 in 2021/22 in line with its agreement on
contribution rates with the schemes’ trustees.
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Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
Movements in the present value of defined benefit obligations were as follows

Group . ) 2021 2020
£°000 £°000
Opening defined benefit obligation 195,372 209,691
Current servicecosts 323 337
Interest cost 4,640 5,318
Past servicecosts ' 50 -
Settlement loss . ' . - -
Contributions fromscheme members 5 6
Actuarial gains and losses . 50,629 (9.265)
Curtailments . - -
Benefits paid (12,031) (10,318)
Exchange differenceon foreignscheme (853) (397)
Closing defined benefit obligation i 238,135 195,372
Movements in the fair value of scheme assets were as follows:
Group 2021 2020
£000 £000
Opening fairvalueof planassets 263,054 267,290
Thereturnon planassets (excludingamounts includedinnetinterest
income) . 6,228 6,659
A ctuarial gains andlosses 17,342 (1,476)
Employercontributions 1,063 1,582
Membercontributions : 5 6
Benefits paid (12,031) (10,318)
Administativeexpenses paid fromplan assets (566). (482) '
Exchange difference j ‘ (423) (207) .
Closing fairvalueofpllanassets 274,672 263,054
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31. Retirement benefit schemes (continued)
The major categories and fair values of plan assets at the end of the reporting period for each category are

as follows:
Group 2021 2020
Level1 Level2&3 - Total Level1 Level2&3 Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 . £'000
Cashandequivalents 2,437 - 2,437 25,081 - 25,081
Equity instruments:
-Shares foraparticularcountry or region 993 - 993
- Globalshares - - - 1,412 57,886 59,298
Subtotal equity 993 - 993 1,412 57,886 59,298
Debt instruments:
- Global Bonds - 106,208 106,208
-Bond foraparticularcountry orregion - 122,297 122,297 - 84,791 84,791
- Other - 42,737 42,737 . 92,472 92,472
Subtotaldebt - 271,242 271,242 - 177,263 177,263
Total . 3,430 271,242 274,672 26,493 235,149 261,642

Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate,
rate of inflation, expected salary increase and mortality. The sensitivity analysis, set out in the table
below, has been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring
at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Group’

Assumption Changeinassumption Impact onschemeliabilities
Discount rate Increase/decreaseby 0.5% Increase/ Decreaseby £27,147,000 (2020: £18,756,000)

Rate of inflation Increase/decreaseby 0.5% Increase/ Decrease by £15,003,000 (2020: £12,504,000)

Lifeexpectancy Decreaseby 1 year Decreaseby £9,049,000 (2020: £6,057,000 Increase)

Other retirement benefit plans

The group’s Dutch subsidiary operates an insured retirement plan and a contributory retirement plan for
eligible employees. All pension costs are funded as incurred and the total cost for the year was £613,000
(2020: £856,000).

Contributions payable during the year in respect of defined contribution schemes and included in the
income statements for the year were £9,275,000 (2020: £10,072,000).
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32. Deferred revenue

Deferred leaseincome (1)

Other deferred income (2)

Current

Non-current

Group Company’
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £000 £°000 £000
3,426 3,523 3,426 . 3,523

11 14 . .
3,437 3,537 3,426 3,523

96 96 96 96
3,341 3,441 3,330 3,427
3,437 3,537 3,426 3,523

1. The deferred lease income included in the financial statements is owed by Princes Limited to Edible
Oils and was paid in March 2005 and is being amortised over the life of the lease of 51 years.

2. Other deferred income relates to funds recéived from shareholders of West Yorkshire Industrial Estates,
of which Princes Limited owns 56% (see note 15) for the express purpose of acquiring specific tangible
assets. This deferred income is released to the income statement in line with the depreciation on the

relevant tangible assets.

33. Non-controlling interest

At1April2019
Totalcomprehensiveincome
Dividends paid

Retranslationofsubsidiary undertakings'net assets

AtlApril2020
Totalcomprehensive income
Dividends paid

Retranslationof subsidiary undertakings'net assets

At31 March 2021

Princes
Tuna
Mauritius
Ltd

£:000

(31,273)
(3,027)
749
(1,509)

(35,060)

(1,247)

730
1,352

(34,225)

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the group’s subsidiaries that has material non-
controlling interests is set out below. The summarised financial information below represents amounts

before intragroup eliminations.
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33. Non-controlling interest (continued)

34.

Princes Tuna Mauritius Limited

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

Total equity

Revenue
Profit/(loss) for theyear

Totalcomprehensiveincomeattributableto owners of thecompany

Totalcomprehensiveincome attributableto non-controlling interests

Totalcomprehensiveincome fortheyear

Notes to the cash flow statement

Group

Profit for the year

Adjustments for:

Shareofprofitofassociates

Incometaxexpense

Financecosts

Financeincome

Exchangelosses /(Gains)

Depreciationofproperty, plant.and equipment/Right-of-useassets
(Gain)/Lossondisposalofproperty,plantand equipment

A mortisationofintangible fixed assets
Impairment(Reversal)/chargeson property, plantand equipment

Adjustmentforpension funding

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

(Increase) /Decreaseininventories
Decrease/(Increase)inreceivables

Decreasein payables

Cashgenerated by operations

Income taxes paid

Interestpaid

Netcashfromoperating activities

2021 2020
£000 £000
73,850 88,185
54,850 62,296
(44,807) (54,182)
(13,017) (23,312)
70,876 72,987
180,783 208,643
3,958 7,010
1,298 3,150
1,247 3,027
2,545 6,177
2021 2020
£000 £000
36,747 22,432
(7,044) (5,319)
8,528 7,979
3,795 4,088
(1,588) (1,341)
1,771 (1,640)
42,869 38,542
(6,342) 1,748
964 964
y (3,797)
(422) (241)
79,278 63,416
(6,030) 1,200
27,308 (8,117)
(2,395) (49,407)
98,161 7,092
(12,813) (13,077)
(3,795) (4,088)
81,553 (10,073)
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34. Notes to the cash flow statement (continued)

Company . 2021 2020
£000 £000

Profit/ (Loss) for the year ) 28,800 10,873

Adjustments for:

Incometaxexpense 9,601 7,486
Financecosts 2,418 2,980
Finance income (5,946) (6,326)
Exchange (Gains)/losses (2) 2
Depreciationofproperty, plant and equipment/ Rightofuse

Assetsandamortisation ofinvestmentprpperty 2'8,158 24,204
Impairment (Reversal)/ chargeson property, plantand equipment - (3,797)
Impairment of investments ' 18,801 21,681
Dividendsreceived fromassociates ' (5,757) (3,318)
(Gains)/ Lossondisposalofproperty, plantandequipment (6,280) 1,768
A mortisationofintangible fixed assets . 964 964
A djustment for pension funding 53 496
Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 70,810 57,013
(Increase)/ Decreasein inventories (18,491) 17,131
Decrease/ (Increase) inreceivables . 39,507 (23,413)
Decreaseinpayables . (4,565) (52,473)
Cashgenerated by operations 87,261 (1,742)
Incometaxes paid . (12,146) (13,071)
Interest paid (2,418) (2,980)
Interest received . 4,243 ‘ 4,804
Net cash from operating activities - 76,940 (12,989)
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Financial instruments

Classes and categories of financial instruments and their fair values

The following table combines information about:

Classes of financial instruments based on their nature and characteristics;
The carrying amounts of financial instruments;

Fair values of financial instruments (except financial instruments when carrying amount
approximates their fair value); and

Fair value hierarchy levels of financial assets and financial liabilities for which fair value was
disclosed.

Fair value hierarchy levels 1 to 3 are based on the degree to which the fair value is observable:

Level 1: Fair values measurements are those derived from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Fair value measurements are those derived from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices; and ’ : :

Level 3: Fair values measurements are those derived from valuation techniques that include inputs for the
asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Group

Amortised cost FVTPL Total
Financial assets £°000 £°000 £°000
Cashandcashequivalents 6,908 - 6,908
Investments (note 17) 36,944 - 36,944
Tradeandotherreceivables (note 19) ) 190,452 - 190,452
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) (level 2) - 1,054 1,054
At31 March2021 234,304 1,054 235,358
Cashandcashequivalents 2,436 - 2,436
Investments (note 17) 34,900 - - 34,900
Tradeand otherreceivables (note 19) 217,028 - 217,028
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) (level 2) - 8,407 8,407
At31 March2020 254,364 8,407 262,771
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35. Financial instruments (continued)

Classes and categories of financial instruments and their fair values (continued)

Group

Amortised cost FVTPL Total
Financial liabilities . £°000 £°000 £'000
Tradeand other payables (note 21) - ) (193,439) - (193,439)
LeaseLiabilities (Note 28) ) (71,665) - (71,665)
Current borrowings (note 22) (379,869) - (379,869)
Non-currentborrowings (note 22) (146,996) - (146,996)
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) (level 2) . - (9,589) ' (9.589)
At31 March2021 (791,969) (9,589) (801,558)
Tradeand other payables (note21) (197,362) oo (197,362)
Lease Liabilities (Note 28) (85,095) - (85,095)
Current borrowings (note 22) (360,818) - (360,818)
Non-currentborrowings (note 22) (171,227) - (171,227)
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) (level 2) - (2,439) (2,439)
At31 March2020 (814,502) (2,439) (816,941)
Company

Amortised cost FVTPL Total
Financial assets ’ £°000 £°000 £°000
Cashandcashequivalents 2,691 - 2,691
Investments (note 15) ) 109,184 - ~ 109,184

" Tradeandotherreceivables (note 19) 233,763 ' - 233,763

Derivative financial instruments (note 24) (level 2) - 649 649
At31 March2021 ’ 345,638 649 346,287
Cashandcashequivalents ‘ 63 - 63
Investments (note 15) 97,135 - 97,135
Tradeand otherreceivables (note 19) ‘ 270,625 - 270,625
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) (level 2) - 7,367 7,367
At31March2020 367,823 7,367 375,190
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- Classes and categories of financial instruments and their fair values (continued)

Company

Amortised cost FVTIPL Total
Financial liabilities ' £°000 £'000 £°000
Tradeandother payables(note2l) (165,061) - (165,061)
Lease Liabilities (Note 28) (57,579) - (57,579)
Current borrowings (note 22) . (362,576) - (362,576)
Non-current borrowings (note 22) (188,406) - (188,406)
Derivative financialinstruments (note 24) (level 2) - (8,686) (8,686)
At31 March2021 (773,622) (8,686) (782,308)
Tradeandother payables (note2l1) (171,051) - (171,051)
Lease Liabilities (Note 28) (65,008) - (65,008)
Current borrowings (note 22) 1 (325,765) - (325,765)
Non-current borrowings (note 22) -7 (210,081) - (210,081)
Derivative financial instruments (note 24) (level 2) - (1,689) (1,689)
At31March2019 (771,905) (1,689) (773,594)

There has been no reclassification of assets or liabilities during the year (2020: same).

Fair value of the group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair value on
a recurring basis

Some of the group's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives information about how the fair values of these financial assets
and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Financial Fair Valuation technique(s) and key Significant Relationship of
assets/ value input(s) " unobservable unobservable
financial hierarchy input(s) inputs to fair
liabilities : value
Foreign Level 2 Discounted cash flow. Not applicable Not applicable
currency Future cash flows are estimated based
forward on forward exchange rates (from
contracts observable forward exchange rates at

the end of the reporting period) and

contract forward rates, discounted at a

rate that reflects the credit risk of

various counterparties.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the current or prior year.
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Financial instruments (continued)

Financial risk management objectives

The group’s corporate treasury function provides services to the business, co-ordinates access to domestic
and international financial markets, monitors and manages to financial risks relating to the operations of
the group through internal risk reports which analyses exposures by degree and magnitude of risks. These
risks include market risk (including currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk.

The group seeks to minimise the effects of these risks by using derivative financial instruments to hedge
these risk exposures. The use of financial derivatives is governed by the group’s policies approved by the
board of directors, which provide written principles on foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
the use of financial derivatives and non-derivative financial instruments, and the investment of excess
liquidity. The group does not enter into or trade financial instruments, including derivative financial
instruments, for speculative purposes.

Foreign currency risk management

The group undertakes transactions denominated in foreign currencies; consequently, exposures to
exchange rate fluctuations rise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy parameters
utilising forward foreign exchange contracts.

The carrying amounts of the group$ foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary
liabilities at the reporting date are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
2021 2020 2021 2020
£°000 £000 £000 £000
Euro 19,574 20,923 597 812 '
US Dollar 6,603 5,564 4,452 2,386
Others . 19 - - -

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis
The group is mainly exposed to the currency of Euros and the currency of US Dollars.

The following table details the group$ sensitivity to a 1% increase and decrease in sterling against
relevant foreign currencies. The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts their translation at the period end for a 1% change in foreign
currency rates. No adjustment has been made for the compensating impact of open forward foreign
exchange contracts or for the reduction in tax.

Impactonequity
2021 2020

Currency £000 £'000 A
Euro (1,119) (1,446) -
USDollar 1) @)
Others 3 29 A

Foreign exchange forward contracts

It is the policy of the group to enter into forward foreign exchange contracts to cover all foreign currency
payments and receipts. The group enters into forward foreign currency exchange contracts to manage the
risk associated with sales and purchases from the date that contracts are agreed.

The following tables detail the foreign currency forward contracts outstanding at the end of the reporting
period, as well as information regarding their related hedged items. Foreign currency forward contract
assets and liabilities are presented in the line ‘derivative financial instruments” (either as asset or as
liabilities) within the statement of financial position (see note 24 for further details):
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Group

Cashflow hedges
Buy(USD)
Lessthan 12 months
Morethan 12 months
Sell¢USD)

Lessthan 12 months

Buy(EUR)
Lessthan 12 months
Morcthan 12 months
Sell(EUR)
Lessthan 12 months

Morethan 12 months

Buy(PLN)
Lessthan 12 months
Sell(PLN)
Lessthan 12 months

Buy(GBP)
Le;slhan 12 months
Sell(GBP)
Lessthan 12 months

Company

Cash flow hedges
Buy (USD)
Lessthan 12 months
Morethan 12 months
Sell (USD)

Less than 12 months
Morethan 12 months

Buy (EUR)
Lessthan 12 months
Morethan 12 months
Sell (EUR)
Lessthan 12 months

Morethan 12 months

Sell (PLN)
Lessthan 12 months

Morethan 12 months

Sell (GBP)
Lessthan 12 months
Morethan 12 months

Notionalvalue:

Foreigncurrency

2020

2021
156,825 156,850
751 133
25,891 41,239
222,606 221,520
2,147 799
22,425 25,128
- (967)

297 536
2,699 3,103

Notional value:

Foreign currency

2021 2020
126,716 115,259
751 133
9,053 17,119
219,544 217,525
2,147 631
4,814 8,297
217 218
19 -

Notionalvalue:

" Localcurrency

(GBP)
2021 2020
£'000 £000

94,677 90,070
544 110

6.573 13,259
192,885 189,842
1,931 555
4,292 7.250
34 44

Notional valsue:

Local currency

(GBP)

2021 2020

£000  £'000
94,677 90,070
‘544 110
6,573 13,259
192,885 189,842

1,931 555 .
4,292 7,250
34 44

Notionalvalue:

Localcurrency

(EUR)
2021 2020
€000 €000
25,276 36,840
13,752 21,808
24 74
3,060 3,383

Notional value:

Local currency

(EUR)
2021 2020
€'000 €000

Notes to the financial sta,téments (continued) -

Notionalvalue:
* Localcurrency
(PLN)

2021 2020
PLN'000 PLN'000

19,803 19,801
- 741
80,143 74,429
- (4,409)
105 .

Notional value:
Local currency
(PLN)

2021 2020
PLN'000 PLN'000

2,127

105 -

Fairvalue

2021 2020
£000 £000
(1,378)  -4.055
2 ay
(498) (706)
(6,348) 3,327
(82) 17
(165) 617
- 2)
0 5
(66) 99)
(8.535) 5.968

—_—

Fairvalue

2021 2020
£000 £°000
(1,702) 3,165
2 3)
6) (586)
(6,431) 3,207
(82) 11
182 (118)
0 2
i ] i
0) .
(8,037) 5,678
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Financial instruments (continued)

Interest rate risk management

The group is exposed to interest rate risk because entities in the group borrow funds at both fixed and
ﬂoatmg interest rates. The group’s exposure to interest rate risk is managed by mamtammg an appropriate
mix between fixed and floating rate borrowings. Due to the nature of the group’s borrowmgs ‘principally
group facilities, the exposure to interest rate risk is considered to be immaterial. .

Credit risk management

In order to minimise credit risk, the group has adopted a policy of only dealing with creditworthy
counterparties and obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of
financial loss from defaults. The credit rating information is supplied by independent rating agencies
where available and, if not available, the group uses other publicly available financial information and its
own trading records to rate its major customers. The groupd exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are continuously monitored.

Before accepting any new customer, a dedicated team responsible for the determination of credit limits
uses an external credit scoring system to assess the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer.

Credit approvals and other monitoring procedures are also in place to ensure that follow-up action is taken
to recover overdue debts. Furthermore, the group reviews the recoverable amount of each trade debt on an.
individual basis at the end of the reporting period to ensure that adequate loss allowance is made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the company consider that the group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced. :

The credit risk on liquid funds and derivative financial instruments is limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies.

Overview of the group’s exposure to credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in
financial loss to the group. As at 31 December 2019, the group’s maximum exposure to credit risk without

taking into account any collateral held or other credit enhancements, which will cause a financial loss to

the group due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties and financial guarantees provided

by the group arises from the carrying amount of the respective recognised financial assets as stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position. '

In order to minimise credit risk, the group has developed and maintained credit risk gradings to categorise
exposures according to their degree of risk of default. The group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its
counterparties are .continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded is spread
amongst approved counterparties.
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Financial mstruments (contmued)

The group’s current credit risk grading framework comprises the following categorxes

Category ' - Description Basis for recognising expected
| credit losses

| Performing The counter-party has a low risk | 12-month ECL -

of default and does not have any
past-due amounts

Doubtful Amount is > 30 days past due or | Lifetime ECL-not credit-
‘ there has been a significant | impaired

increase in credit risk since initial
recognition

In default Amount is > 90 days past due or | Lifetime ECL-credit-impaired
there is evidence indicating the
asset is credit-impaired

Write-off - There is evidence indicating that | Amount is written off
the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and the group has no
realistic prospect of recovery

The tables below detail the credit quality of the group$ financial assets, contract.assets and financial
guarantee contracts, as well as the group’s maximum exposure to credit risk by credit risk rating grades.

External Internal Gross & net
credit credit 12-month or lifetime carrying
Note rating rating ECL? amount (i)
Amountsowedby Lifetime ECL (not
parent undertakings 19 N/a Performing credit impaired) 2,444
Lifetime ECL
Tradereceivables 19 N/a " (i) (simplified approach) 168,608
At31March 2021 171,052
External Internal Gross
credit credit 12-monthorlifetime carrying
Note rating rating ECL? amount (i)
Amountsowedby Lifetime ECL (not X
parentundertakings . 19 N/a Performing creditimpaired) 1,588

Lifetime ECL
Tradereceivables 19 N/a (i) (simplified approach) 195,476

At31March2020 ' ' 197,064
No adjustments for loss allowances have been made (2020: none).
(i) For trade receivables, the group has applied the simplified approach in IFRS 9 to measure the loss

allowance -at lifetime ECL The group determines the expected credit loss on these items by using a
provision matrix. .
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Financial instruments (contlnued)

The carrying amount of the group’s financial assets at FVTPL as disclosed in note 24 best represents thelr
respective maximum exposure to credit risk. The group holds no collateral over any of these balances.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with -the board of directors, whlch has
established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the group’s short,
medium and long term funding and liquidity management requirements. The group manages liquidity risk
by maintaining adequate cash reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast and
actual cash flows, and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The following tables detail the group’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash
flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date on which the group can be required to pay. The
contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the group may be required to pay.

Less than 1-3 3months 1-5 5+
1 month months tolyear years years Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Tradeand other ’
payables 133,991 61,327 - - - 195,318
Lease Liabilities 1,736 3,355 8,258 33,275 34,332 80,956
Borrowings 232,105 1,213 146,551 120,996 26,000 526,865
At31 March2021 367,832 65,895 154,809 154,271 60,332 803,139
Less than 1-3 Imonths 1-5 5+
1 month months to 1l year years years Total
£°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000 £°000
Tradeand other
payables 138,238 59,124 - - - 197,362
Lease Liabilities 1,385 2,771 12,468 42,100 37,108 95,831
Borrowings 355,325 2,006 3,487 12,255 158,972 532,045
At31 March2020 494 948 63,901 15,954 54,355 196,079 825,238

Capital risk management

The group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the group will be able to continue as going
concerns while maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity
balance. The group’s overall strategy remains unchanged from 2020.

The capital structure of the group consists of net debt (borrowings disclosed in note 22 after deducting
cash and bank balances) and equity of the group (comprising issued capital, other reserves, retained
earnings and non-controlling interests) as disclosed in the consolidated and company statements of
changes in equity).

The group is not subject to any externally imposed capital requirements.

The group’s board of directors review the capital structure on a regular basis. As part of this review, the
board considers the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital.
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UItimate holding company and controlling party

The smallest group of which the company is a member and for which consolidated financial statements
are drawn up is that headed by this company. The parent undertaking of the largest group of which the
company is a member, and the ultimate controlling party, is the Mitsubishi Corporation, a company
incorporated in Japan.

: ‘Copies of the group financial statements are available to the public from the following address, which is

the registered office:

Investor Relations Department,
Mitsubishi Corporation,

3 - 1 Marunouchi, 2-Chome,
Chiyoda-Ku,

Tokyo,

100-8086,

Japan -
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